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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REFORT

To the Members of
Fusion Micro Finance Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Fusion Micro Finance Private Limited (“the Company™),
which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2019, the statement of profit and loss, statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of the
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (collectively referred to as the *financial
statements),

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given o us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act™) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2019, and profit and its cash flows for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(1 0
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the
Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilitics in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics, We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matiers that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These maiters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financiel statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

‘Key anditmatfer ]Hnw the matier was addressed i in our aud:t ’

Provision on loan portfolio mcludmg managed and sccuritised portfolic

Charge to the statement of profit and loss (including write off): INR 263,405,305 for year ended 31
-March 2019
. Provision as at balance sheet date: INR 483,552,365 as at 31 March 2019

“Refer to the accounting policies in “Note 1 () (6 the financial siatements; Classification of loan por(folio

4 compliance with the Reserve Bank of India -
Jiguidelines with regard to the Asset{e Assessed the design and implementation of controls in-

{.portfolio relative to the balance sheet and ;
| the impact of provision for loan losses on | »  Performed test of details, on a sample basis, of calculation |
{'the financial statements, we have|  of provisions as at 31 March 2019 to assess the:|
1 considered this as a key andit matter. - completeness, accuracy and relevance of data and ensure |

_and provisioning policy” and . ”Nm‘e24 2 7 29 2 19 r,ma' o.the fmancmhtaremems e

i The determination of provisions for loan { We performed the following key audit procedures:
- portfolio mciudmg managed and securitised . _
 portfolio is inherently judgmental and reties | = Performed progess walkthroughs to identify the key |
-on management’s best estimate, including controls used in the provision for loan portfolio process.

$:Classification & Provisioning. respect of the Company's provision for loan portfolio |.
i ) ' process such as the timely recognition of provision, the

‘Fstimates, by their nature, give rise to a completeness and accuracy of reports used in the provision |-
{ higher risk of material misstatement due {o process and management review processes over the .
j.error or fraud. Given the size of loan calculation of provision.

that the same is in compliance with the RBI guidelines |
with regard to the Assct Classification & Provisioning,
prescribed and Company’s accounting policy.

+ Assessed the appropriateness of the disclosure in the.
financial statements. :
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Other Information

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the
financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. The Corapany’s annual report is expected to be made
available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not EXPress any
forn of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstaterent therein, we are required
to cormmunicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5)
of the Act.with respect 1o the preparation of these financial statements that give a trae and fair view of the
state of affairs, profit/loss and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally.accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frands and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and matntenance
of adequate internal financial controls that wete operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements thai give a true and fair view and are free from malerial misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability 1o continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concerts
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate the Company
or to cease operalions, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are 1o oblain reasonable assurance about whether the financia) statements as a whole are fee
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and o issue an suditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from traud or ervor and arc considered material if, individually or in the aggrepate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the cconomic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

)
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain peofessional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion, The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resuliing from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the averride of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal controt relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are alse responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

#. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s abilily to continue as a going concern, If we conelude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required 1o draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or condifions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

% Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achicves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
cthical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the maliers communieated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that wers
of most significance in the audit of the financial staterients of the current period and ave therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our audifors® report unless law or reguiation preciudes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rave circumstances, we determing that a matter should not
be commuticated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected
10 outweigh the public interest benciits of such communication.

™
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT
Fusion Micro Finance Private Limited

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1,

As required by the Companics (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “Avnnexure A” a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, 1o the extent applicable.

(A) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that;

a)

b}

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit,

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss and the statement of cash flows dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2019

“taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March

2019 from being appeinted as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with refererice to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure B”,

(B) With respect 1o the other matters 1o be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

a)

b}

&

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2019 on its
financial position in its financial stalements - Refer Note 2.40 to the financial statements;

‘The Company did not have any long-term contracts including devivative contracts for which
there were any material foresecable losses;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Edueation and
Protection Fund by the Company; and

The disclosures in the financial statements regarding holdings as well as dealings in
specified bank notes during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 Decemnber 2016 have
not been made in these financial statements since they do not pertain to the financial year
ended 31 March 2019,
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (continued)
{C) With respect fo the matter o be included in the Auditors’ Report under Section 197(16):

The provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are applicable only to the public
companies. Accordingly, the requirement under Section 197(16) of the Act are not applicable to the
Company.

for B 8 R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accourtants
ICAI Firm's Registration No, 116231 W/W-100024

(Do =
Arpan Jais

Place: New Delhi Partner
Date: 27 May 2019 Membership No. 125710



8 S R & Associates LLP

Fusion Micro Finance Private Limited _
Aunnexure A to the Independent Anditor’s Report on the financial statements

The Annexure A referred to in our independent Auditor’s Report-of even date to the Members of
Fusion Micro Finance Private Limited (“the Company™) on the financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2019, we report that;

3

il

iv,

vi,

vii.

{2) The Company has maintained proper records showing full pasticulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assefs.

{b} The Company has a regular programume of physical verification of its fixed assets by which
all the fixed assets arc verified every year. In our opinion, the periodicity of physical
verification is reasonable having regard 0 the size of the Company and the nature of its
assefs. During the year, the Company has carried out physical verification of its fixed assets
in accordance with the programme, however, reconciliation with fixed assets register is in
progress as al year end,

'('c) The Company does not own any immovable properties. Hence, the provisions of Clause
 3(i)(c) of the said Order are not applicable fo the Company.

The Company was engaged in the business of providing Micro credit. Accordingly, it does not

hold any physical inventories. Hence, the provisions of Clause 3(i) of the said Order are not

applicable to the Company.

The Corpany has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited
Liability. Partnerships or other parties covered in the Register maintained under Section 189 of the
Act. Hence, the provisions of Clanse 3(iii}a), (iii)(b). and (iii)(c) of the said Order we not
applicable to the Company.

The Company has not given loans, investments, guarantees and security covered under Section
185 and 186 of the Act. Therefore, paragraph 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

‘The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public,

The Central Government of India has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub-
section (1) of Section (48 of the Act for any of the services rendered by the Company.

(@) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted/accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory ducs including Provident fund, Employces’ state
insurance, Income-tax, Goods and services lax, Cess and other material statutory dues have
-generally been regularly deposited by the Company with the appropriate authorities. The
Company did not have any dues on account of duty of Customs and duty of fxcise.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable
in respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ state insurance, Income-tax, Goods and services
tax, Cess and other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2019 for a period
of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According lo the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of Income tax,
Goods and scrvices tax, duty of Customs and duty of Excise which have not been deposited
with appropriate authorities on account of any dispute,

viii. Awmding to the records of the Company ¢xamined by us and the information and explanation

%)

given to us, the Company has not defaulied in repaymentt of loans or borrowings (o any financial
institution or bank or dues to debenture holders as at the balance sheet date, The Company did
not have any toans or borrowings payable to Government.
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Fusion Micro Finance Private Limited _
Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report un the financial statements (continued)

ix.

xi.

Xii.

%,

Xiv,

XV,

xvi,

The Company has not raised any monies by way of initial public offer or further public offer. In
our opinion, and according to the information and cxplanations given to us, monies raised by
way of term loans have been applied, on an overall basis, for the purposes for which they were
obtained though funds which were drawn towards the end of reporting pericd were invested in
liguid assets payable on demand on temporary basis.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that no material fiaud by
the Company or by its employees or officers has been noticed or reported during the year except
for instances of cash embezziements by certain employees of the Company aggregating to an
amount of INR 10,532,331 and out of which an amount ef INR 2,937,175 has been recovered.
The services of the concerned employees have been terminated,

The provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V 1o the Act are applicable only to the public
companies. Accordingly, the provision of Clause 3 (i) of the Order are not applicable o the
Company. ' R

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it.
Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xii} of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions with related parties
arc in compliance with the provisions of Sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and
the details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as
required under Accounting Standard (AS) 18, Related Party Disclosures specified under Section
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

The Company has made preferential allotment of equity shares during the current year, in
compliance with the requirements of Section 42 of the Act. The amounts raised have been used
for the purpose for which funds were raised.

The Company has not enlered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable
to the Company.,

The Company has been registered under Section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 as
a Non-Banking Finance Company — Micro Finance Institution.

for B 8 B & Associates LIP
Chartered Accouniants
ICAI Firm's Registration No. 116231 W/W-160024

o . .U\

Arpan Jain

Place: New Delhi Partuer
Date: 27 May 2019 Membership No. 125710
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Fusion Micro Finance Private Limited
Amexure B to the Independent Anditor's Report on the financial statements

The Amexure B to the Independent Auditors® report of even date 1o the Members of the Company on the
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

Report-on the internsl financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

(Referred to in paragraph 1(A) (f) under ‘Report on Other Lepal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of
our report of even date)
Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Fusion Micro
Finance Private Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an ‘adequate internal financial controls with

reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31

‘March 2019, based on the internal finaneial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance

Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chatered
Agccountants of India (the “Guidance Note™).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Rinancial Controls

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the inernal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maimtenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
ity business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the titely
preparation of refiable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Respensibitity

Our responsthility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and
the Standards on Audiling, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable 1o an audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financiat statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plac and perform the audil o obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
established and maintained and whether such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

iy
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Fusion Micro Finance Private Limited
Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements (continved)

Auditors’ Responsibility (continued)

Qur gudit involves performing procedures to obtain audil evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Oue audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included oblaining an understanding of such
internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectivencss of infemal control based on the assessed risk, The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fravd or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sulficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Mcaning_ of Infernsl Financial controls with Reference to Financia! Statements

A company's internal financial confrols with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance tegarding the reljability of financial reporting and the preparation of financia!
statements Tor external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, A company's
internat financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain 10 the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accuratcly and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of'the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
aceounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance
with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements,

Inherent Limications of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management averride of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detecied. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject 10 the risk that the
internal financial controis with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

for B S R & Assoclates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm's Registration No. 116231 W/W.-140024

@WG‘J\‘)@%

Arpan Jain
Place: New Dethi Pariner
Dxate: 27 May 2019 Membership No. 125710
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Shect a3 a1 31 March 819
(A Famagunts in Indian rupees unless otherwise slated)

EQUITY AND LIABILATIES

Shflmha!dm‘s fineks
Share capital
Reserves and surpiog

Non-vurreat liabilitics
Long-term borrowings
Limg-term provisions

Current liabititics
Shost-tarm borrowlugs
Ofher current linbilitics
Short-term provisions

Taotal

ASSETS

Nofecurrent nsseis

Property, plan and equipment
(i) Tangible assets
(#i} .infongible assets

Deferred tax assets, oo

Loau portfotio

Long-term loans and advances
Other non-ourrent gssets
Mon-gurrent invesimenis

Current assels

T'rade receivables

Cash and bank balances

Loan portfolio

Shorl-tenn lones and advances
CHher cumren( agsels

Total

Stpatficant acceuniing policies
Notes to the fisaneial siatements

As per our report of even date atinched

Jor B S R & Associates LLP
Chariered Accowniants

{CAI Firm Registration Muntber.: 116231 W/W-100024

CLa

Arpan Jain
FPartner
Mambership Number: 125710

Phaee: New Debhi
Daate: 27 May 2019

Mote

2.1
22

2,3
24

2.3
26
27

2.8

234
rRY
210
201
202

213
.14
29

X135
216

i’,,&e’epnk Manwiin

K (m?pu.frl’ Sterern ;5

Place: Now Delhi
Drate: 27 May 2019

As af
31 March 2019

Asatl
3 Mavel 2018

61,57.75.618 44,18,26,745
_501,08,70.407 233136, 158
0,22,66,46,025 . . " 2,5760.52.003
14,19,47,74,307 10,02,48,61,095
L 4,87,20,616 1,09,69,203
o 14,243494,093 £G,(,18,30,708
v6,84,02,778 £,00,81,75,525
12,18,15,68,585 5,53,05,61,564
46,96,33,198 . 52.70,93,587
13,61,96,02,561. 680
T R80T AR08 R
5,35,15,304 4,72,48,139
17,26,308 23,892,087
22 87,38,564 25,00,31,961
6,85,72,87,081 4,39,19,24,739
10,82,63,742 9,01,50,334
51,01,65,290 74,99,95,256
50,0000 50,00,000
1764696280 5,53,76,53,576
60,592,422 47.57,197
9,35,12,50,880 5,05,83,28,137
16,56,10,26,376 8,83,49,57,752
5,44,64,899 561,908,988
35,.22,11,643 190.24:78,241
_26,32,30,47,230 _14,14,69,60,365
. SHOERTAIE00  TTUSGRaeTART
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Jor and on behalf of the Board of Dirgetors of
Fusion Micro Finsinee Private Limited

CIN: LS5 100D 19941 P61 287

Pradip Kou
Divector

DI 42837368
VG
f(r, H 2
it ‘L Shaaial Officer
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I Logs for the year ended 31 March 2019
fan rupees unless otherwise stated)

Income

Revenue from operations
Other income
Total revenue

Expenses

Oporating expenses
Employee benefits expense
Finance cosis

Depreciation and amortisation
Other expenses
Total éxpense

ProfitALoss) before tax

Tax expenses:

« Current tax

- Deferred tax
Profit/(Loss) alter tax

Earning per equity share

[Nominal value per share Rs. 10 (previous year: Rs.10)]
- Basic
- Diluted

Significant accounting policies
Notes to the financial statements

As per our veport of avent date attached

Jor B & R & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAL Firm Registration Number.:1 1623 1 W/W- 100024

CW@V 3(}%

A;f;m Jain
Parirer
Membership Number.: 125710

Place: New Delhi
Daie: 27 May 2019

For the yesr ended
Note 31 Maych 2019

31 March 2018

2.17 4,86,26,26,235 2,54,46,46,956
208 253833359 12,84,80,122
5,11,64,89,504 L 207,31,27,078
219 37,77,11,360 94,49,59,645
2.20 £,01,19,16,452 66,10,08,113
221 2,44,20,78,376 1,36,60,23,585
2.8 2,38,74,193 2,04,06,853
22 21,67,77,285
- 3209175481
88,22,32,943 (53,60;48,462)
20,65,19,400 .
2,21,93,398 (14;19,13,770)
65,38,20,145 VARG
2.29
13.21 (11.09)
3.2 (15.09)
]
2

Jor and on behall of the Board of Directors of

Fustan Micro Finance Private Limited
CIN: U6S100DLIS94P T 061287

iﬁé.ésli-S:achdnv )
MD & CEQ "

%N:. 02547111/
§ ) i,

" Company Secretary

Msestivard
ACHIRE Fifymicied Gfficer

Place: Naw Delki
Date: 27 May 2019



Fusion M ierg Finance Private Limited
w-S1ag . ded 31 Mar 2819
{All mnaum» in lndian ropies unless othérwise stated)

Parienlars

I, Cash flows from eperating activities:
Peofit £ (oss) bofore tax

Adjustments:

Deprwutmn and amortisation

T.oan porifolio wrilten aff

Provision on foan porifolio

Provision for employec benefits

Profit on sale of mutunl find wirits

Profit/floss) an sale of fixed nssets

Opcrati_ng prafit hefom working capikal changes

1ncrmsc in loan pnrtfolm (net of securitised loan portfolic)
!m}rensc: in advances and other assels
Proceedxf(l.eau) to Fusion meiuycc Benefit Trust

piaxcs pmd net
i¢h flow uged. by operahm, actmhcs {A)

1L Lash ﬂowq fron: invesiing activities:
Purchase of fixed assets
Proceed o sale of fixed assels

more thays thiee months
Net cash from/ (used by) investing activities (13)

1. Cash flows from financing activities:

Procoeds From issuance of share capital (including share premivm)
Payment of preference dividend

Payment of tax on prefirence dividend

Proceeds from borrowings, net

Net cnsh provided by financing activitics (C)

Net increase in eash and eash equivalents (A + B+ 0)
Cash and cash equivatents at the beginning of the year
Cash and ensh equivalents at the end of the year {refer Noto .14

As per our Report of even datc attached

Jor BS B & Associates LLF

Chartered Accowtants

ICAL Pien Registration MNumber. 1 1623 1 W/W- 100024

. N@,M

Arpa Jain
FPariner
Membership Number.: 125710

Place: New Defhi
Date: 27 May 2019

For the year ended
31 March 2019

Tor the year ended
31 Maich 2018

8%,22,12,943 (53,60,48,402)
2,38.74,193 2,04,06,853
29,11,12,696 66,36,78 547
{1,97,35,034) 21,9539 136
1,35,58.656 56,31,153
(18.28.86,330) ¢11,72,82,465)
28, 181) 15,897
1 (m 85,33,043 25,59,40,859
(10,49,67,23,116) (6,38,03,74,300)
{22,26,18,704) (6,93,74,026)
(5 82,33 520 2,93,613

oA 10M A1)

(2.95,44,331) (2,39,31,655)
29,559 _ 7,000
18,28,86,330 2,21,73,96,225
{19,24,45,073). 3s,17,02,190)
£3,4,73,515) . L84,1T59,378
3.05,68,47,104 74,86,88,116
(i4,64,658) £27,00,000)
{4,56,057 {3.49,660)
106,43,87,25,336 B66.69.84 575
1%‘49 31,51,925 " 7,41,23,83,431
3,31.21 95,999 3,28,53,61,657
4,94,58,70.073 1,66,05,08415
U8, 7580,66,07] 4945870073

Jor and on behalf of Bpard of Directors of
Fusion Micro Finanee Private Limied
CIN: U5 100019942 TCO61287

_
\/f‘%’)gm Madaan

Compuny Secrefary

Place: New Delhi
Date: 27 May 2019

(W !,4 T nf! Officer



Fusion Micro Finamee fyivate [wited
Nutes (o e finnnejal stements foy the yenr cmded 31 March 2099
AN amounts in Tndiss ropees unluss atherwise stated)

LY Share capital

Anthorised: .
Bauity sloares
70,000,000 [pievions year; 0,000,600 equity shares of Ks. 18 sagh

Peefereate shinres
3,000,800 (provious yeur: 5,000000) profereace shaves ol Rs, [0} each

lssued and swbseribed

Equity shares

Fretly: goaried g

G621, 580 (previans year: 41,976,979 ) squity shares of Bs. $0 cach fulty paid
Less: Amout recoverable from Fusion Bwployess Beneth Trust

Farily pald up

3O0LA0E (provious year: 1,099,295) equity shatss of R, 10 each patly paid up £ s §

Prelerence shares

Ml Garevions yeur: 3,000,000) 9% optionslly convertible prefirence shaves of 12s, 20 such, flly

paid-ap

LI The veconcHiation of the aumbier of cquity sharves outstanding s at the beginning and the end of (e reportiag periad 5 yet ot below:

Ag nil
3 Mureh 2419

Ag Rt
31 March 201§

70,00,50,000 506,000

£,00,00,000 508,480,000,
5.

00000, . S500.00.800

62,62,11,808 41,97,09,790
(1,35,35,500) {89.52,340)
i 309,408 16,99,295

61.57,75,618 a4,18,26,745

- I 00,000

As a1 ey 2019

Particulnrs

Mg ne 31 Mareh 2004

Nuntber of shaves ~ Ampwnil.  Numberef pusi
: shares ]

Eguity shares M"
A il comenziesnen of the year 2,30,70,274 A0,08 (085 3,51,74,717 351747170
Atlotied to Fusion ¢inployes bencfil trust 547647 54.96,47) - .
Conveesion of 9% apiivnally comvertible preference shars 6,725,002 62,50,930 - .
Sssued during the year (Rlly paid wp} 1,94.75461 1947,54,610 57,926,302 6,73.62 520
tssued daring Lhe year (portly peid up@d s, 13 20,00.7 1 70,00,113 10,992,205 ) 090,195
At the ond of the yenr SIS BAIBILIOR 43000270 4 08.8908s

2L Ihe vecaneiliatinn of e nunder of OpGonally Convertilie Freferepoe Shares (OCPE) ou

ding 43 at the heginning and end of the veparting geriod is set sut bolow:

A e 31 Mar 2019 . As 3] Muech 2013
Particulars " Nomher of sliaves " Amount  Number of Ameun(
0% Dptionally Comvertible Proferenve Shoves AR
At the commeneement of the yonr 30,400,000 204,006,060 30,406,000
Tesued diing the year - W
Conversion diwing e year 30,00,000 306000400 -
At tiee end af the year RS 300,000

243 Righis, pe
[i) Bepuity shares

and e

nitnched ta pquicy shaves and profereace slmves:

The Cowpatey fins single slass of equily shares having o par valva of e, 10 per equity shadie, Accordingly, Wl equity shures rank ctpally with regnrd to dividends and shars in the
Company's regidual nesets, Tlie equity shares ars clitled to roveive dividead as declared from time o time subsest fo payimend of divideid (o praference sharehofders. b Bhe cvent of

proportion 1o the wamber of oquity sliares Bold,
{it) 9% Optiondlly Covvertilble Preforeree 50 (OCPS)

of thio Carpany, the Bolders of equity shases will be entitled 1o recelve the residual asscis o the Comipany, sengining uiter distribution of el proferentiol smounis i

Sinall Industrios Develupment Zank of Indin ("SILH31") has exeecised s aption to comvart 1,000,000 (Tity laes) 9% Opriowally Converriile Proferenes Shores [OCPS) Laviay face
vone of Ra 1000 cach agpropating 1o s, ID.006.000 (Three ciores only) alosg vl unpak! dividend payalle o SR perigining o financial yue 201718, into By paid equily

sl of the Conmpany al . pro-agreest prico, which is linked to 1he breakup valve, of IR 5231 (Fifty Two mipees aud

sicordancs with Il Shisrehotder com Subscription Agreeivent datad 24 July 2014

One poisa) per eyuity share of the Company, in




2.1 Shere capital (ountinued)

284 Partlculass of equity sharcholder holding-fore tham $% equity shres:

Nasie 4] tho shaselsolder %, af Falding -

N o ﬁm X i
RIF-NORTR 2, Mairicius .~ - ) B O 000% 6,80,130 £.54%
WME FRONTIBR FUND L LLP, Norway - 0.00% 44,48,758 LE26%
E)e\resh Suchdey » M L. CEQ 411D, L850 T17% 27.04,037 6,28%
Belginn lpveatinen Co pmly l‘ur Developing Counlries SA, Belgium . 0.00% 31,34.,930 11.92%
Oikucredi(, Bonm omnent Co-Dperative Sociery 11,4, Netherlands 66,106,375 10.05% 66,06, 375 15.34%
Croglion lnvestmeiit LG, Chicage, U.S.A. {,53,21,043 2331% £53,21,043 35.57%
Cfuuuon lavestmant F‘usmn 1L, LLC, Clsicago, UL5.A. 51,34,920 THI% B 0.00%
Globat Fmanuml talusion Fiid 35.'!9 0‘)1 5.9 35,390,051 5.32%
Houey Ross Investinont Lid, Mnuritiag L 41.56% S

0.00%

SéQgigﬂE A7 29%,

%55 Partleutare orpre_regﬁpgss_hnm_o[_ﬁcr holding more thin 5% prefecencs sharss:

SApat 3 March 2019

__A:fntﬂi March:ﬂlﬁ -

Manse of the share']iﬂ'idht_". = Numbsar.of % of Tnlding aevber of 7 % 0f Holdmg
e o mres :ﬁlan_rus e
...... s - 3000005 ;_I:ﬂ_i__?

Theee shiateq nie reserverd for smployess as al balance sheet date

AT Ag\gregnrc aunther and class of shaves allotied ae futly puid up pursuent to Share Subscription Agrecuient dated 24 lay 2000 withowt paymend being received fnocash
during e five-venr: period soded March 31, 2079:

Az nt As Bt LENT] As e Asnt
T b 31 Mueeh 219 31 Mgrghzﬂw L] Marchlll!? )| Maach 2016 31 Munhzﬂls
Parfouhges T e e e L e L SRS T e e
: -_chares .share.a e Shpres . mres oo Bhaves
“Bhares sliotied to Direators o ) I B e, 303,425

T UARAYS




3

Fusion Micro
Notes to the f
(AN wmounts in Indian tupees

he yoar endsd 31 Mareh 2019
55 olherwise siated)

2.2 Reserves and surphis

Securiics premiun seeoint

Al the commencement of the year 2,29,38,27,08¢ 1.63,42,00,842
Add: Premiuny Received on equity shares tssoed during the yoar 2,88,66,59,172 67,96,26,201
Less: Shate issiae cxpenses (57,28,691) (57,000)
Sub cota! 517,47,58.070 2,29,37,74,089
l.ess: Anouat recovarable from Fusion Braployess Benefit Trust {6,37,75.501}) (1,00,32,33%)
At the end-of the year (A) S IL00.82 569 0 2R.31.09, 7150
Srafutory regerve (erented vader Section 45-5C of B Act, 1934)
Af e commencement of flie yoar §,23,17,902 525,017,902
Add: Amaunt tiansferred from surplus in the statement of profit & loss 13,07,04,029 «
Less: Amount ulitized -
At the end of the year (B) 18,3224 031 52517902
Surpins/ (Déffcit) Balsnce in 5__1;;‘__;_:_,‘_@11@;:% of prafit and loss
19,62,54,798
. (39.41,34,632)
149 Stalutosy reserve 4! 2 N
Less: n 9% Optionally convertibe preforence shares* (41,64,658) (27.00,0603
‘Less: Tak on preference dividend . {B56,087) (3,49,660)
At the end of the year (C} .. 31,66,65,907 (20,1120 494)
‘Fotal reserves and surplos (A+B+C) 'S;GII.I{I.S.;'?O}"'!*}"I' Ty AR B6.158

Al at
31 Mareh 2019

As At
31 March 2088

* Dividend inciudes dividend nrouting to Ry, 2,700,000 pertaining 1o finsneial year 2017-1% and Rs, 1,464,658 pertaining to curreni financiad year iill

conversion of 9% OCPS to equity shaces; - -

23 Long-ternt borrowings ¥

Debentures
Secured
3,489 {Previows yene: 4,143 Redeomable transfersble non-convertible debentures of R,1,000,000 3,48,93,33.400 4,14,29,99 867
each, luliy paid-up
60 {Previogs year: Nil) Redegmabie tranyferable non-gonvertible debentures of R3,.10,000,000 each. 60,(0,00,000 -
fully paid-up
Unseoured
1,050 {Previous year: 1050y Redecmable transizrable non-converfible debentures of Rs. 1,000,060 1,05,00,60,000 1,05,68,00,000
each. fully paid-up
Term loans
Secured
~ from banks 5,99,48,72.349 1,79.07,26,140
- from others 258,14, 77,651 2,41 ,65,89,6142
Unsecnred
- front banks 30,00,00,600 .
- fyoms gthers 17.90,90,507 £$2,45,45,456
' 'i»s,-w.;:'z'mg{'-:ﬂw- 10,02,48,61,095

*Refer noie 2.33




2 year ended 31 March 2018
(Ali amoums i Indian tiipees unféss oiherwise stated)

2.4 Long-term provisions
Contmgmu Prows:on against siaudard loan povtfolio (Qwned)*
Provision for mpioycc benefits
= Gratuity (refer note 2.26)
- Compensated absences

* refer note 2.23
1.8 Bhort terin borrowings*
From Banks
- Cash Credit
- Term Losn

* refer note 2,33

%6 Otliéi enrient

Current malurities of Eong~term debt: *
Debentures
Scwred

667 (Provious year: 287) Redeemable transferable non convertible cfcbanwres of
125.1,000,600 cach,

Term feans
Secured
~ From bank
~ From others .
Unsecured
- From others

Yghicke loans
- From bank

Payable towards secutitised porlfulic
Interest acerued but not due on borrowings
Enterest accrued but duc on borrowings
Statutory dues

Salaries and bonus pavable

Expenses payabie

Other payable

*pefer note 2,33
2.7 Short-ferm provisions

Contingent Pravisions against standard loan portfolio {Owned)®
Contingent Provisions against standard loan portfolio (Securitised)*
Provision on non performing loan porifofio (Qwaed)*
Proviston on non performing loay porifolie (Securitised)®
Provision on non-pertorming losn portfolio (Managed®
Provision for amplovee benefils
- Gratuity {refer note 2,26)
- Compensated sbsences
Others?

*refer note 2,23

Asal

o3 March 2019

As at
3 Murch 2018

3,28,58,160 -
e 3,12,746
. 1,58,62.456 1,66,56,457
C4,87.20,618 169,69,
5,81,75,525
_56,84,02,778 D50NA0,000
96;84,02,778° 1,00,81,75,525
66,76,66,600 28,66,66,800
7.01,35,97,545 2,36,92,90,194
3,49,68,05,509 2,21,32,43,558
14,54,54,544 14,54,54,544
11,32,35,24,288 5,01,49,38,216
42,59,73,580 21.42,56,408
21,03,08,724 15.66,83,492
2,90,331 -
4,49,07,946 2,74,12,306
9,02,34,584 5,06,74,148
4,19,11,691 2,22,17,848
o AMATTI8T  A45TBISO
12.18,15,68 383 ©UU8,53,05,61,568
8,08,83,280
1,42,03.453 .
33,11,79,290 50,57,05,307
63,727,195 :
1,81,00,987 2,01.88,620
o . 2,25,171
T 14,37,397 9,74,489
17499800 N
96,341,198 52,76,93,587
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Fusion M[cm Finapee Private Limited
Noses to thc financial statements for the year ended 31 Marh 2619
{All amounts in Indian rupess unless othierwise stated}

2.9  Loan porifolie

{lnsevared

Microlinance loan portfolio fngl of seeuritised loan partlfolio of Rs. 2,510,295,320
{previous year: Rs, 1,700,705,31 1))

Loans placed as over collateral ngainst the securilization transactiops™

of the above loan porifolic
Non-gurrent
Cureent

Out of the above loan partfalio
Constdered good
“Cansidered doubtful

As al

31 Mareh 2019

As at
31 Mareh 2018

23,07,94,67,225 13,00,73,48.012

oo .338m46242  21.9544,479
23,41 33,13 457 13,22,68,92,451
6,85,72,87.081 4,39,15,34,739

L 16,56,10,26,376 _ £,81,49.57.752
23,08,74,34,167 12,70,09,99,464
331119280 §2,58,93.027
23,41,83,13 457 13,22.68,92,491

* Inclides an amounl afﬁs 338,846,232 (Previous year: 219,544,479) given us :,rcdat cnhmwemcnt towards securitised portfafio n the

foum of over colia!emhza(mn

200  Longerm lnans an'd' advances
(Unsecured, cmmdemd good)
Security deposits®
Advanee tax {net of provisions For (ax)
Rent depasits

* includey deposits matatained exlent (o Res 18,750,008 (previous year Rs, 29,166,675 a5 cnsh coitateral against term loans

availed from financial institution.

211 Other non~cureent gssels
{Unsecured, considerad goed)
Long term deposits with matursily of more Utan (2 months®
- with banks towards terns Joan
- with hanks unpledged
= with financial Institlutions as security deposil fowavds tenn loan
- with financial imstilution a3 security deposit towards managed portfolic
interest necrued but not doe
- term deposits
Unamoriised processing fees

1,96,61,615 3,00,20.916
7,82,21,843 5,31,80,348
1,03,80,284 £9,40,070
T 10,82,63,142 001,560,434
32,45,19,944 52,97,32,361
4,00,00,000
1,25,00,000 3,24,52,268
8.45,42.678 14,72,60,615
1,22,11,974 71,49,754
3,670,694 3,34,00,258
-ﬂ,m 65,290 74,99,95,236

*lselodes deposits of Rs. 337,019,544 (previous yonr @ Rs.562,184,629 ) maiotained as cash coliateral against rerm loang availed and
s, 127,948,339 (previous year @ Rs 147,260,015) nwintained as cash cotluteral apainst managed portfolio,

2.E2  Non Current invesfinenés
Other than trade and guoied
{Vatued al lower of cost and fair value)
Investments in mutual finds

500,000 units (previous yeac: 00,0000 fully paid up of WDTC deb fund for cancer

cuarg

Aggreyate book value 3,000,040
Aggrepate market value 5,004,000

213 Trade receivahbivs
(Unsecured, considered good)
Receivables outstanding fora pem;-d i
due Tor payment, .
Others recaverable

30,00,000 50,00,000
50,080,000, 50,008,000
G, A . AT97,147

Gie3 ATy

T 9,10




214 Cashi and _b_j;i;_i_;_l; balances

2.15

2.16

Cagh and cash equivalents

As af
31 March 2019

As at
3¥ March 2018

Cash in hand 3,59,34,615 51,61,301
Balances with. banks.
- in current secounts 4,84,75,22,792 3,09,07,08,772
-in déﬁ.q_s_it_a_c__cognts with original maturity less than 3 months* 387, 46,08,664 . 1,85,00,00,000
MG AT
58; 3{ 85 809 13,24,58,114

Detalls of bank m;ﬁn_cas and deposits

Bank balances available on demand/deposits with maturity of 3 months or less

852 (prevmus y;:ar :Re. 13 333 114) mamtﬂmed as cash coilateral agmnst mmmged ponfolw

included under ‘Cash and cash equivalents’ | 8,72.21,31,457 4,94,07,08,772
Bank deposits due 1o mature within 12 months of the reporting date inciuded
vnder ‘Other bank balances' 59.31,85,809 11,24,58,114
Bank deposits due to mature after 12 months of the reporting date included
under *Other non-purrent assots (refer note 2.11) 42,11,62,622 70,94,45,244
9,73,64,79.888 ©  576,26,12,130 '
Short-term loans and advances
{Unsecured, considered good)
Balance with Employees benefit trust 25,000 1,37,802
Balance with Gratuity Fund 21,98,702 -
RS SRR
Advances recoverable in eash or kind
Unsecured, considered good 5,22.41,197 5,60,61,006
Unsecured, considered doubtful 2,26,006,529 _ _
74847776 _5,60,61,006
Provision for doubiful advances TTTR,26,06,529) T
By 852241197 5,60,61,006
Total (A+B) 5,44,64,800 5,61,98,988
Oéher current assels
(Unsecured, considered good)
Interest aocrued but not due
- on loan portfolio 19,50,87,815 10,63,15,125
- on fixed deposits with banks 7.53,08,430 2,80,64,717
Interest socrued and due but not woll 61 23,322 29,771,872
Unamortised processing fees % 5‘3 ?[J 065 5,10,46,336
Prepaid expenscs | 42,80,191

19,26,78,341



Fusion Miera Financs Privace Limited
tatenibnis I'or the yenr ended 31 March 2019

ipeés uniess otherwise stated)

2.17 Revenue from operetions

Interest incowe on foan portfolio

Income from business corres;mndencc seivices
Income from asset securitigation

Processing fee en loan portiplic

Other operating incoms

Interest ont term deposiis with banks & financial institutlons

 Otiey income

- Profiton sale _bf-lnvqs_;mgms_

. Miscellaheous iricome

2.19 Operating expenses

Postage and conmunication

Contingent provision sgainst standard ponifolio (owned)*
Provision en non performing loan portfolio fowned)y?
Contingent Provision against standard portfolio (managed)
Provision on non perfoﬁning lpan portfolic {managed)
Provision on bwsiness correspandence portfolin®
Provision against insutance recoverable

Provigion on amount recoverable BC collection

Loan portfolio writien off

Repuirs and maintenance

Printing and stationery

Proviglon towatds cash loss

*refer note 2,23

2,20 Employce benefits expense

Salarivs, wages and bonus
Gratuity expenses
Compensated abscnees expenses

Contribaotion to provident fund and other fund (|e[‘er nole 2.26)

Staff wolfare expenses

For the year, cnded
31 March 2018

4,19,44,46,990 2,1%,33,54,624
6,37,14,277 5,77,68,440
26,61,20,355 9,17,84,950
27,82,22,317 16,70,68,924

480,503,939 ES0.9976587
6,01 22'295 3,46,69,969

5 ' 34809960
©2,54.46,46,956

1172 32,465
R 48 356

2,90,13,588 2,01,56,111
11,3741,440 .
(174526,018) 19,93,50,516
1,42,03,453 -
63,27,195 : .
(20,87,633) 2,01,88,620
79,72,357
146,334,172 .
29,11,12,696 66,36,78,587
3,44,51,472 236,717,585
2,59,62,152 1,79,02,454
_1,69,06,486 s
A0 84,45,59,645
90,99,68,762 58,32,59.875
1,07,34,009 69,75,047
32,24,647 81,61,210
642,36,128 4,78,69,967
2,37,52,906 147,42,014

LOEI0, 10,452

,10,405,113




2.2% Flhiance costs

Inferest on borrowings
Orher finance costs

2,21 Other expenses
Rent
Travelling and conveyance
Loading & boarding
Ligal and professional fees
Raigs and takes
Office maintenance
Water and electrioity
Stafl'recrulttient and tralidng

inf 18

i5INESS P lon.
Miscellaneous ¢xpenses

sponsibility/Donation

d. . .
he yeur ended 31 March 2019
erwise stim:_dj

For the year ended
31 March 200%

2.36,32,08,579

For the year.ended
31 March 2018,

1,32.44,68,682
413,354,903

8.14,21,203
5,77,85,654
1,75,34,74¢
11,47,54,730
3,32,94,989
2,10,17,119
1,35,84,373

2688959

T 56,60.23,585

60541017
4,04,75,984
1,21,25,510
4,21,46,743
1,64,61,387
1,52,91,547
79,62,382
23,60,961
© . 35,10,989




As af
3 M.irch 2018

“Provision | Loan portfolie | Provision
(113,741,440 | 12,481,454, 985 )
331_,17(9,_2902_‘ 525,893,027 | 505,705,307

'Sub standard and Toss
_ portfoho _
To_tal_ e

portfoho amounilng to Rs. 291,1 12 696 (prewous year: Ks 663 6'?8 537) hdve been wmttcn off.

.' ¢} Ason. 31_M' ch 2019 prowsaon toward ron- perfol g busmess corre‘;pcndence portfoizo is Rs,
18,100,987 (virevious year: Rs. 20,188,620}, -

dy As on 31 March 2019 provision towards non-performing securitized porifolio is Rs. 6,327,195
{previous year: Nil}

€} Ason 3t March 2019 provision towards standard portfolio securifized is Rs. 14,203,453 {previous
year: Nil)

f) The movement in provision during the year is disclosed below, .

For the ye.a.r:er.ldet'i | | For the year; cmled.

_ 31 Mareh 2019 N T 31 March 2018
-Particnlars Standard “Sub-standard . ' Standurd | Sub-standz:qrd ' -

1 porifolie and toss Total 1 portfolic | &ndloss Fotal

1 ? portigtio | | P portfotio |
Opening 4 .| 505,705,307 | 505,705307 | 57,062,046 | 18,039,922 75,101,068
l‘;";’;é"“’“ 113,741,440 | 116,586,679 | 230,328,119 - | 1,148,490 691”ﬁ 1,148,490,691
pm‘;ision D A O £ IR T T R e T T -.
witenback | | (291,112,696 | (291,112,696)° g§7,062,046) (660,825 306) . (m 887,352)
Closing . | 113,741,440 | 331,179,290 | 444,920,730 | .1 505,705,307 | 505,705,307

Based on the management assessment and considering various factor the Company has accrued
100% provision on identified non-performing portfolio in addition fo a frovisigi to the extent of
0.50 % on standard portfolio, which is in higher than pmvzsron required as per\{ BT provisioning
norms..




Fusion Micro Kinance Private Limited

Notes to the financial statemients for ths-yéar ended 31 March 2019

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

b) The Company has entered into business correspondence arrangements with the bank, As per the
terms of the said agreement, the Company has given performance security amounting to Rs.
123,607,763 (previous year: Rs. 138,311,880) towards the loans disbursed by the hank under the

agreement, The {otal outstanding of such loans as on 31 Mareh 2019 was Ry,

433,304,649

{(previous year: Rs. 628,421,743). The performance security. provided is in the natore of fixed
deposits and Corporate Guarantee.

¢} Contingent Hability in respect of preference shares

 Particulars

Aqat o
31 March 2019

As at

31 March 2018

Dividend on 9% optionally convertible .pfef‘éz*cnce
shares (Refer Note 2.1,3) _

- 2,700,000

D

d) Detaits of Provident fund contribution as per Supreme Court Judgement

o 399556 |

The Hon’ble Supreme Court of India (*SC”) by their order dated February 28, 2019, in the case
of Surya Roshani Limited & others v/s EPFO, set out the principles based on which allowances
paid to the employees should be identified for inclusion in basic wages for the purposes of
computation of Provident Fund contribution. Subsequently, a review petition against this decision
lias been filed and is pending befose the SC for disposal. Pending decision on the subject review
petition and directions from the EPFO, Based on legal advice obtained by the Company the
management has a view that the applicability of the decision is prospeciibe and accordingly has

provided the lability for March 2019, The impact for the past period,
outcome of subject review petition and directions ﬁ'or_n tl

APFO.

ill depend upon the

" For the year ended For the yearended
Particulars v’ 3 31_?. i
| . : 1 Employee .
et : Cash Lo_sg T_.Cu_t_ltingency.__ 'lotaﬂi. ; let _I_A_os_s . Contixl_ggucy. o _.F.thl
Opening b = 1,728,589 805,961 | 2,534,550
Provisionmade, | 16,906,486 | 2,515000 | 19421486 | 10,528.926 | 600,000 | 11,128926
rovision WS | (1 a02.443) |- (319.447) | (1921890 | (12257,515) | (1,405,961) | (13,663.476)
2.24 Contingent Liabilities not provided for:
#) Credit enhancements provided for sccuritization transactions
e | Mareh 31,2019 | March 31,2018
| Credit enhancements provided by the Company o N ' T
towards securitization (including cash collaterals and 582,92%:462 ¢ 380,138,208




Aarch 2019

’{‘he Ccmpa___y has éd stock options to certain employees of the Company under the 'Employce
Stock Option Scheme 2014' (Schcme 2014) afi¢ 'Employee Stock Optlon Scheme 2016' (Scheme
20163, The key terms and conditions refated to the grant of the stock. options are as follows:

a) The Scheme 2014 and Scheme 2016 are effective from 31 July 2014 ‘and 16 Janvary 20317

respectively (as amended from time to. time) and are administered through Fusion Employees
Benefit Trust (“ESOP grust™),

b) The Scheme. prowdes that, subjeet to continued employment with the Company, the employees
are grante d; an option 1o acqunc cquﬂy shcncs of the. Compauy 1.hat may be exmmscd within &
spec:ﬁed period

to the Company as repayment of, mteicst free &

d} As on 31 March 2019, the ESOP trust has 1,353,559 equity shares (as on 31 March 2018 ESQP
trust had 898,234 cquity shares), during the year the company has-issued and allotted 549,647
equity shares to ESOP trust. Further the trust has transferred 94,322 shares to employees on
exercising of stock options under the Scheme 2014 and Scheme 2016 of the company. The ESQP
trust does not lave any other transaction tiwat those mentioned above and accordingly as on 3{
March 2019, the Company has reduced the amounts representing on account of outstanding shares
with ESOP trust amounting to Rs. 13,535,590 (previous year: Rs. 8,982,340} from the share
capital and Rs. 63,775,501 (previous year: Rs, 16,032,339) from the share premium,

e) The eligible employees shall exercise their option to acquire the shares of the Company in
accordance with ESOF schemes. The plan shall be administered, supervised and implemented by
the boaed.

The optmns shall vesl on gr aded bas:s as toilnws'

'Ou wmp!el:on ofl ye'u 25% '
IO comsietion aF a1 55|
‘On completion of 3years L 25% |
1Onoompletion of dyears | " " 25% |

Stock nptmn dctmty under ESOP Schemc 2014 ami 2016 is as below

."'I’ar deulars “For the yfmr uded | For fhe year ended
. i o 31 Mareh 2019 | 31 March 2018
.JOuleaﬂdinb At the begmmng of lhe _\,{_gg;:q ____________________________ 891,618 ¢ 381,006
Granted duging the year AT ' 330,540
:Forfeited/lapsed dur ing the year {33370 4 -
. Exercised during the year o ""':9'4:'32§1k o 19e28
Quistanding at theendofyear. |- 1,198,643 891,618
:'Excmsabh, at the end OFYGE&I o 290818418 186,189




31 March 2019

la.tia

n meh}yec Share Based

3’g:-t_n_- P-._ _fc)rma Net_

For the y'éé'r ended |
1t Maachﬁﬂlﬂ :

L 12394979

9,089,136 |

960,557

G |

(59,6197 |

. 2,447,847y

: Cinsmg deﬁiled benéf' t uhlagatwn

3,14,65,298

19,936,506

Moverment in fair value of planned asgets

Particulars

o theyear onded

) 31 March 2019

“For the year ended

Opemng ta:r valuc of planned assets |

193985681

31 Maych 2018
O 62,71,790

"_Cpnmbution pald

| .Beneﬁts Pald

125,00,000

4,86,064

| Actuarnl gam;’(ioss) on plan agse s o

140735

_ Closing fair valuc of planned assets

33664000 |

Expensc r ecognued in statemem of pmi‘t and loss

_ Pfulu,uia:s

For the year ended
31 March 2018

For the year ended
31 March 2018

Current service cost

1,28,69,653

9,089,136

: Inferestcost

15,45,07%

960,557

Expected retarn on plap assets

1 Past Service Cost

(503390 %

" (4,86,064)

i year

| Net actuarial {gain)/ loss recognized during the.-

(22,77,332)




-March 2019

Amount £o be recognized inthe balance sheet:

3] Ma_reh 20195__ 31 Mareh 2{)18
3,14,652981 19936, 506 -
{3,36,64.000) 1 (1,93,98,586)

(21,98,702) 537,917

1 Particwlars

P v
31 March2019 | 31 March 2018
e e e
Y T
53T

Amounts recognized in current yeat and prevmua four years

| Tare SO— ..2‘{}-1:9- 2018 : o 2016’"' 2915 BRTITY

: _éobligalton at the 3,14,65,298 19,936,506 12,394,279 | 6,395,006 | 3,264,381
1 end of the year _ ' ]
[Fair vaine of plan ] e B R ;
{rassets atend of the { (3,36,64,000).{ (19,398,589) { (12,329,194} { (5.529,194) W

e o I I R R

."Prineipal actuarial assumptions 31 March 2019 | 31 Msm.h 2018
5_1) Discount rate (p -3 ) o 7,75% : | 4 ?5%:‘5
i) Salary escalation rate (p a.) 8.00% T RO0%

in)Fxpectedretumon planﬂsbets o 5% 7.75% |




Mairch 2019

“For 1 the year end_ed "
31 March 2018

33,303:947

_18,1_80,1.8?

' 1"2'0' 069

Bilsiness segment

The Company operates in 2 single reportable segment i.e. micro finaneing activities, which
have similar risk and return. Accordingly, there is no reportable segment to be disclosed as
required by Accounting Standard (AS)~ 17 “Segment Reporting”.

Geographical ngg:;en_t

The Company is engaged in the business within. india. The conditions prevailing in India being
aniform, no separate geographical disclosure is considered niecessaty,

Z2.28 Operating leases

Lease payments made under cancellable operaling lease amounting (o Rs. 81,421,203 (plewous
year: Rs. 60,541,017) disclosed as rent and the same have been recognized as an expense in the
Consolidated statement of profit and loss. There are no subleases. There are no non-cancetlable
operating leases, accordingly there are no obligation on the company towards minimum lease
paymenls,

29 Earnings per share (KPS)

The {‘ollowmg reflects the profit and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS
Gompulzmons

T S R Asat e
i 4 31 Mareh 2019 | 31 March 2018
Profit/ (loss} after tax | 653,520,145 (394,]3_{{_,632}
Less: Dividends on convertible preference shares & (5.020,715) 3249656
tax thereon o T '
Not profit/ (loss) for alculation of basic EPS 648,499,430 (390,884,976)
‘Net profit/ (loss) for caleulation of diluted EPS ”'"'_“'_ 648,499,430 | (390,884,976)
_Wslghtud average aumber of equny shares in 493(}90)??5 35,821,721
caleulating basic EPS '




Fusion Micro Finan
Notes to-the |
{All amounts are

3,000,000

. 90'1’,'455

49,090,775 39,723,177 |

2.38 Disclosures relating fo Securitization vide circufar no DBOD. NO BP.BC. 60/21.04.048/20605-
06 dated 01 Febroary 2006.

{Amount t crores].

g i‘or the year ended -

.31 March 2018
186,790

22546

For Mm

: Pa'_lf_ti_ct_llar_s

mncemants for assets de- . 2498 coae - 2195

' gain. on “secwstization- to be

amortl:zed overthe life of the lecewablc ot
{ Quantum of credit enhancement provided |
1 during the year in the form of deposits

Bk Rl

1606

2.31  As required in terms of circular RBI/2012-13/170 DNBS. PD. No. 301/3.10.01/2012-13
dated 21 August 2012 for the securilization transactions entered on or after 21 August 2012;

(Amount in crores)

Ry voras .2:5 T PPr
31Mamil 2019 31 March 20 18

_' ;I’artxculars

T Nuraber of bpecmi Pmpme VL%n{;kS {SPV&)
| sponsored by the Company for securifisation "y 7
_ uan‘;achons '

2.Total amount of securmsed assels ciS per books | el .
621 14
 of the SPYs sponsored by the Company# e _2 e
S otal amounl of exposures vetaimed by The T
Company to comply with Minimum Retention b -
‘Rate. (MRR) as on the date of balance sheet |

a) Offﬁbaidnce sheet cxposmes .
*Flrstloss ) _ B ' «{ -

T - B
__b)  On-balance sheetexposures [ o
¥ Firstloss (Cash collateral) . 3243 1606
* First logs {Micro, ﬁuancc ieans} o 33884 2185

*Othels R . i .
4. Amount of cxposures to securitization | S
transactions other than MRR
. a)  Off-balance sheet exposures ] _ )
T Exposure to ovn seemititions T e

¥ Firstloss - e
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1 over the Company

Bitities exercising significant influence | 4
e Hcmey Rose Invcstmem Lad ("Warburg
| Pincus®) {w.e.l. from 05 December 2018)

_ﬁ'_"_:"l;l L, Chicago,

{ Director/ Key. Managerla! Personine]

"I M. Devesh Sachdey - MD and Chief Exooutive

Loevpy | Officer
B Summary of refated party transactions
[ Name of the mlated Fm tile year ended ; For the yeay endedmj

-f; Nature of fransaction

] pal ty : 31 March 2019 31 Miarch 2018
: Manageria) Ty .'

: { remuneration 19,586,609 9’912’85.3
1 Mr. Devesh Sachdev | Equity shaces alfotted | S '
" Funder preferential 2,000,113 1,099,295 |

Laliotment - b : :
1 Creation Investment | Allotment  of  equity | .
1 Fuosion, LLC, | shares (including share - 554,588,760
{ Chicago, US.A, . %_paemzum} L '
i Creation Investment  |* ) ' '-
| Pusion, LLC, _:?%{simtﬂrrqegent of; 200,733
1 Chigago, US.A, rave mg SXPERSES 1
{ Honey Rosg " Aflotment  of cqtuty-

Investment Ltd shares (including share | 3,000,000,012 -

1 ("Warburg Pincus"™) 4 premium) '

Refer note 2.1 for details of shares issued/ transferred

Note: As the provisions for gratuity, leave benefits and stock option expenditée
. Company as a whole, the amounts perfaining to the. Key Managemsnt |
ecificatly identified and included above.:
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'E#Vchac!c loan is secured by hypothecation on respective vehicles

@ Interest is charged based on Reference Index Per formance, corresponding Effective Anmualized

Coupon rate Function,

2.34 Deferred tax assets

Pa rllculars

31 March 2012

TAsat

31 Mareh 2018

As at

i _Deferr_ed tax assets o'n:_

ASBTIs0T0 | T

153140312

6,045,261

5,290,772

- Prowstou for cmpioyec beneﬁts
‘- Depreciation on fixed assets

983,151 |

‘= Provision for employee oo]}langency & cash loss

-« Intérest ont market linked debenlures

.~ Un amortized share i issue expenses o

183'39? 370

-« Provision for bonus

i 243 043

"~ Unabsorbed business loss

BN AP

82 274,103

Yol

228,738,564

250951961




2.37 Amounts payable to Micro; Small and Mcdium enterprises

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an Office Memorandum dated 26
August 2008 which recommends that the Micro and Small Enterprises should mention in their
correspondence with. its customers the Entmpremurs Memorandum Number as aliotted after filing of
the Memorandum. Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amounts payable to such enterprises
as at 31 March 2019 has been made in the financia! statemenis based on information received and
available with the Company. Further, in the view of the management, the impagt of interest, if any,
that may be payable:in.aceordance with the provisions of the Micro, Small and Medinm Enterprises
Development Act, 2006 is not expacted 10 be material. The Company has notreceived any claim for
mnterest from any supplier under the said Act.

I* or the year ended

1;:Pa2'tlwl.u.s. .31 March 2018

;lema:mnb unpaid to any supplie:r as at the end of Nil Nil
- eag '

The amount of" mler‘est"paid by the company along
‘with ihe amoints of the payment made to the
:;_suppllex beyoud the appointed day during the year,
The amount of interest due and payable for the |
period of delay in making payment (which lave
been paid but beyond the appointed day during the
‘yeary but without adding the interest specified
Jnder this act,

The amount of mtc:ost aomwd ‘md wmzumng
uppaid.at the end of the year; and v L
The amount of further interest remammg due and
-payable even in the succecding years, until such
‘date when the interest due as above are actyall .
‘paid to the sma)l enterprise, _ TR o

ND b NiE

Nil ' Nil




| 239F

__31 Mar{:h 2018

EgAverage net profit/(foss) of the company for:l:g'” 119,405,529

Hast th:w ﬁnancral.})ems . | R SRR

N11 T VT
8362168 | A8

2.40 The company has reviewed all fitigations having an. impact on the ﬁnanc:a! position, where
appfmable has adequately provided for where provision are required and drsclosed as contingent
liabilities in its ﬁnanmal statements. Refer note 2.24 for further detaﬁr;,

Z41 Additional disclosures as required by the RBI:

_ a)(,apltal to Risk Asset ratio {(,RAR)

- 8. No. . 'Partmuiars  Asat As af

e e 31 Mi!l"_(,h 2019 .21 March 2018,
B €7 B 175 I TY 71
i ] CRAR - Tier !Lapltal(%) 23.36% | 15.14%
LA CRAR -~ Tierd Capitab (%) . i3OI 673%

v Amount o_fsub«mﬂmated debf ralsed as TreME i ' 600 000 000
e Cupital :

v | Amount ra:scd by issuc of Pcrpctual Dem y

| Instruments -

b) The Company does not have any direct or indirect exposure to real estate sector.

¢} Asset Liability Management

Maturity paticrn of certain items of assefs nnd liabilities as on 31 March 2019

{Amount in croves)

_ from others o

45230

l.d“y - l o W R Tovers | o o

Partieulars 08 | to2 months | months | months | o (}aiest 51 rotal
days | wouths upto 3 to 6 tat years

T T monghs _.m(mthc - _

o | 5165 | 66 Csa60 | 25748 161567

" Borvowings 11.6] 1 | 9304




March 2019,
5 unless otherwise stated

1 6343 126333 | 19560 |- 5500 ¥ ssom0
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d) Provision and contingencies (shown under the head expenditure in statement of profit and
loss)

l’mwsmn' :for msu:anoe rewvcmb!e and
: coI!ectlon .

ror | T

_;_P:ovmon fm mve be'ﬁéhts' — 032 D082
&) Sector wise Non-I’ertormmg Assets*

S, | N Sector b L EY 201809 Y 201743

- No. o 1 Porcentage of NPAs ¢ Percentage of NPAS to
' ' © to total advances in | fotal advanees in that

. that sector ' _sector

o4 Agrieulture & allied activities # -
MSME
- 1'Corporate borrowers

. Services

4 Unsecured. pezsona[ loans
Ao foans. L
‘Other personal loans
"‘based on Owned portfolio.

# including manufacturing & production, trade & retail, C8 and Others,

4.10%
WA
NA .

ﬁ@ﬁ%ﬂﬂw

f) Movement in Non-Performing Asset (NPA) _
{Amount in crores)
Particnlars sk 2018-197  2017-18
i} [:Net NPA 10 net advances per cemdgc 1 816%
i)y |'Movement of NPAs (Gross) & — '

Im)Openingbolanee N N T R

“I'b) Additions during ih* '
| ¢) Redietion dur
© [ d) Closing balance
i) :M(}vmmnt ofncl NP?\&. A

G| es08)
330240 5057

I 3




31 March 2019

Y 1485
(39.12) | (66.08)"

Sy 05y

{Amoamt in crovesy

A at
1: 31 March 2019

Asat

31'March 2018 ‘

;._dep;sctatlon o1 investiments.

T M veme lofprowsmus hbid mwards"””””""” S

~Qpening balance

" Add: Provisions made. durnadhevear

Y -,?iprowsmns durmg ihe year

Less; Write-off/ write-back of excess

X if._Closmg bdlance

Number of |
__complaints

33

of cmnplamts regeived duri mg the vear

)

| No, of complaints redressed during the yea:

T

No. of complaints pending at the end of the

year . ...

o 14

i} Ratings assigned by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings

Facility

. Current rating

Previows rating

‘MFI Grading

MET ] CARE

’V1H2~1 CARE

Long term bank facilily

CARE A-

"CARE BBB+

Non-convertible debentures (’\C‘D’S) -
inc ud_lug su_b__ debt

ICRA A-/CARE A~

;cj'\ng; BBI/CARE BBB+




k)

k}

)

o)

P)

Detafls of penalties imposed by RELand other vegalators

No penalty ha n imposed by RBI. and other regulators on the Company during the financial
year ended 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018,

Unsecured advanees

' mpany has not given any unsecured advances against mtanglble secnritics such as charge
the rights, licenses, authority, etc, during the financial year encled 31 March 2019 and 31
March 2018

_Details of non—perfm mmg financial assets porchased / sold:

n ha_s not: pumhaqed;"soid any non-performing financial assets duri ing the financial year
20;9 and 31 March 2018, y

me down from reéeﬁbs

Thene has been no draw down from reserves during the year ended 31 Mamh 2019 and 31 March
2018.

The Company does not have any foreign cusrency exposure and/or derwatlvw during the year and
as at balance sheet date.

Detalls _Of registration with financial and other regulators:

{Regulator | Registration number | Date of registration .
) Mmlstry QFCorporatL Af’f‘an‘s UﬁSlOODL1994PTC06128? _'_5 Sentember 1994
| Reserve Bank of India [ B-14.02857 119 May 2010




Place_:.New___l;)gl_h_'i . . L _Pla;ce: New Dcihi
Date:27 May 2019 Date:27 May 2019




b}

¢)

vailie co]latemi free. Ioans up to
5 1g,amzed near. the habitats of the

bi.lé hand%é“ts :bxéy g

uider the lustoucal cost convention on the
: itaterial e;cts with:the Accoupting Standards (GAAP)
§ - Ompa Act, 2013 (*the Act’) read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts)_Rules, 2014 other accountmg, p: mc&pleq generally accepted in India and the Reserve Bank of
Tidia (*RBI’) guidelines to the extent applicable to a Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Non-
B_z_l_n__ki_n_g Finance Company (‘NBFC.ND-8I") and Non-Banking Financial Company - Micre Finance
Institution ("NBFC-MFI’). The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees rounded off to the
nearest rupee.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP 1oquires management {o make

Jjudgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabiities, income and expenses and the disclosure of contingent labilities on the date
of the financial statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Estimates and vnderlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis, Any revision to accounting estimates is fecognized
prospectively in current and future periods.

Current — non-currend ciassification

All assets and labilities are classified into current and non-current.

Assets

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria;
Lo il is expected to be realised in, or is nnended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal
operating ¢ycle;
. itis held pr tmarlly for the purpose of being traded;
i1, it is expected to be realised within 12 months afler the reporting date; or
iv. it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being;b}}i{:}!’i_ﬂﬂ\ge(l' or used to setle a liabifity
for atleast 12 months afier the reporting date, \




tfinancial assets: All other assets are classified as

Ak : d-as crrent when It satisfies ariy. of the foilowmg criteria;
L itis expected 0 be settled in the C ompany’s. normal operating cycle;

it.  itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

i, it is due to be seltled w:thm 12 months after the reporting date; or

iv. the Company docs. not-have an unconditional right.to defer seftlement of the liability for atleast 12

months afier the reporting date.

Cuncm llabilltws xnclude the current portion of non-current tmanc:a] liabilities, All other Habilities are

m‘nng aaaets (NPA a) whele it is

recognized; upon’ reailzatzon as per t the' prudenhal norms of .RBI.

1. Income from interest strip (excess interest spread) in secunmauon is recognized in the statement of

profi and Joss account oo realization basis.

iii. Income from business correspondent activity is recognised on accrual basis as per the terms of
arrangement entered into with the client bank. Revenne from Business Cop respondent activities to the
extent of services rendered but yot to be bilied are treated. as ‘Unbilled revenue’ and are disclosed
under other current assets,

iv. Loan processing fee received upfront are considered to be accrued at the time of entering into a
binding agreement upon its receipt and are recognised as revenue immediately,

v, [nterest on term deposits has been accrued on the time propomon basis, using the underlying interest
rate.

vi,, Dividend income is accounted when the ri ght 1o receive the dividend is established.

Classification of lean portiolio and provisioning policy

Loan portfolio is - classified and provision is made in accordance with the Non-Baaking Financial
Company — Micro Finance Institutions {(NBFC-MFIs) Directions issued by Reserve Bank of India as
mentioned below:

Asset classification norms:

i.  Standard asset means the asset in respect of which, no default in repayment of principal or payment of
interest is percetved and which does not dmclosu any problem tm__g carry more than normal risk
attached to the business,




1)

a period of 80 days or more

Provisioning norms;

The aggregate loan provision shail not be less than the higher of:

1. 1% of the cutstanding loan portfolio, or

i, 50% of the aggregate loan installments which are overdue for more than 90 days and less than 180
days and 100% of the aggregate loan installments which are overduc for 180 days or more.,

Based on the management assessment and considering various factors, the Company has acerued 100%
provt' ion on identified non-performing portfolio and ‘business cor‘respondence portiolio a](mg with 0,50
% on andmd portfoho (GLY—') which is in hlgher than prowsmn requucd as per RBI prow.‘,]onmg Norms.

_ma_nagcm_ant any amount is not 'z' ocoyerab te, are fully. provrded"for;‘ written offt,
Fixed assets and depreciation/amortisation
Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are carried af cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation. The cost of tangible

Tixed assets comprises the purchase price and directly attributable costs of bringing the assets to their
~ working condition for their intended use.

Subsequent expenditures related to an item of tangible fixed asset ave added (o its book value only if they
increase the future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of
performance. Tangible fixed assets under construction and tangible fixed assets acquired but not ready for
their intended use are disclosed as capital work-in-progress.

The management has assessed the estimated useful life of the tangible fixed assets other than leasehold
improvements as specified in Schedule H to the Companies Act, 2013 as in the opinion of the
management the same reflects the estimated useful life, Depreciation is provided under written down
valug. method. Depreciation is caleulated on pro rata basis from the date on which the asset is ready for
use or tilf the date the asset is sold or disposed.

Leasehold improvements are amortised on straight line method over the primary period of the lease or the
estimated useful life of the assets, whichever is lower.

Losses atising from retivernent or gaing or losses arising from disposal of fixed assets are recognized in
the statement of profit and loss.

Ay

Intangible assets




le assels are amortized in the statement of profit and loss over their estimated useful lives from

the date they ate available for use based on the expected pattern of consumption of economic berefits of

the.asset. Intangible assets are being amortised over a period of 3 to 6 years using written down value
method. '

g)

costs are eherged in the period they are incuired:
an entily incurs in‘connection with the borrowing of fu

s which necessarily take a
ther-borrowing costs are

indication that an asset may. be
| ble antount'of the asset. The
er. of “its_vaiue in use -and its net selling price. If such
f 1 n its cartyi ount, the earrying amount-is reduced to its
ble amount. The rediiction is treated as an impairnent loss and is recognised in the statement of

profit and loss. If at the baldnes shest date there is an indication that if & previously assessed impairment
loss o longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the recoverable
amount subject 10 a maxintum of amortized historical cost.

i) Investmenis

Investments that are readily realizable and intended to be held for-not more than a year are classified as
current investments. All other investments are classified as long-term investments.

Long-term investments are carried at cost legs any other than temporary diminution in valve. Current
investments are valued at Jower of cost and fair vatue determined on individual investment basis.

-j} Retirement and other employee benefits
Defined contribution plans

The Company makes specified monthly contribution towards employee provident fund to Government
administered provident fund scheme, which is a defined contribution scheme. The Company’s
contribution is recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss during the period in which the
employee renders the related service,

Defined benefit plan

The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible emptoyees. In the
current year, graluity is covered under a scheme administered by the Kotak Life Insurance Company
(Kotak Group Gratuity plan) and the contributions made by the Company to the scheme are recognised in
Statement of Profit and Loss. The liability recognised in the balance ghewi in respect of defined benefit
plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligativivas Batavie®Shiect dage:less the Tair value




B

(,ompensated ah%nu,b is 2 Hong-term employee bcnef’ f, and accrued based on an actuarial valuation
done as per projected unit credit method as at the Balance Sheet date, carried out by an independent

' shareho__ ers by ‘the welghted avucu,e numbez of equnty shaies 01at5landmg duamg the year. For the
_purposc of caicuiatmg d:luted earﬂmgs per share, net profit afier tax for the year and the weighted average

Number of shares outstanding during the year are adgusted {or the effects of all dliuﬂvu poteatial equity
shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed to have been converted as of the beginning of the year,
unless they have been issued at a later date.

Inecome tax

lncome tax expense comprises current tax and doferred tax.

Current tax

Cusrent income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid fo the tax authorities in accordance
with the Income Tax Act, 196], enacted in Tndia. The tax rates and tax laws nsed to campute the amount
are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date,

Deferred tax

Dc,feri ed ax charge or benefit reflects the tax effects of timing differences between accounting income
and taxable income for the period. The deferred tax charge or benefit and the corresponding deferred tax
liabilitics or assets are recognized using the tax rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted by
the balance sheet date, Deferred tax assefs are recognised only o the extent there is reasonable certainity
that the assets can be realised in future; however, where there is unabsorbed depreciation or carry forwarg
of losses, deferred tax assets are recognized only if there is a virtual certainty of realization of such agsets.
Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date and writieisgloswn or written-op to reflect the
amount that is reasonably/virtially cerstain to be realised, X




ly. Ca mhgen‘r liabilities 'do ot warsant provisions but are disclosed unics'; the
sibility of outﬂow af Yésburces is remote,

_g its obhgaﬂons under the. t.ontract The
xpectad_ cost. of tenmnatmg the mntract

Cash 1l _-W:s'tﬁtéméh't

o)

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit/ (loss) before tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or
payments. The cash flow from regular revenue generating, investing and financing activities of the
Company ate segregated.

p} Foreign currency transactions

All transactions in foreign curreicy are recognized at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the
transaction.
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Dear members,

The Board of Directors hereby submits the 25" board report of the business and operations of your
Company (“the Company” or “Fusion”) along with the audited financial statements, for the financial year

ended March 31, 2019.

BOARD'S REPORT

FINANCIAL & OPERATIONAL SUMMARY OR HIGHLIGHTS/PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY

income

Revenue from Operation 48,626.27 25,446.47
Other income 2,538.33 1,284.80
Total Income 51,164.60 26,731.27
Expenditure

Employee Benefit Expense 10,119.17 6,610.08
Depreciation Expense 238.74 204.07
Finance Costs 24,420.78 13,660.24
Provision for Standard and Non- performing Assets (197.35) 2,195.39
Other Expense ' 7,760.93 9,421.98
Total Expense 42,342.27 32,091.75
Profit before Prior Period Expenses 8,822.33 {5,360.48)
Less: Prior Period Expenses (Net of Income) - -
Profit/(Loss) before tax 8,822.33 {5,360.48)
Current Tax/Deferred Tax 2,287.12 (1,419.14)
Profit/(Loss) after tax 6,535.21 - (3,941.34)

Operationat performance for the fiscal year 2018-19 is summarized in the following table:

Increase over %

Year ended March 31 FY March 31,2019 | FY March 31,_2018 FY 2018
Number of Branches 504 359 40.4%
Number of Members 1,510,823 973,300 55.2%
Number of employees 4,398 3,202 37.4%
Number of States 18 14 28.6%
Amount Disbursed (INR In Crore) ™~ 2782.16 1,670.58 66.5%
Gross Loan Portfolio (INR in Crore) 2592.86 1,485.53 73.4%

2. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

In accordance with Section 134(3){a) of the Companies Act, 2013, an extract of the annual return in the prescribed

format

is appended as “ANNEXURE 1” to the

Board's

https://fusionmicrofinance.com/pdf/Annual_Return_2018 _19.pdf.

report. The

satme s

available

on



DEPOSITS

The company had not accepted any public deposits during the year within the meaning of Non-Banking
Financial Companies Acceptance of Public Deposits (Reserve Bank) Directions 1998.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

During the year under review, your Company transferred INR 130,704,029/- to the statutory reserve
pursuant to Section 45-1C of the Reserve Bank of india Act 1934, '

DIVIDEND
Dividend on Equity Share Capital:

The Directors of the Company feel that it is prudent to plough back the profits for future growth of the
Company, hence do not recommend any dividend for the year ended March 31, 2019,

Dividend on Preference Share Capitai:

During the FY 2018-19, the Company has declared an interim dividend at the rate of 9% on the Optionally
Convertible Preference Share {OCPS) to SIDBI in October 2018 for the period commencing from April 1,
2018 until the date of conversion of QCPS out of the profits for the financial year 2018-19 till the end of
guarter ended September 2018. As on March 31, 2019, the company has no preference share capital,
hence no final dividend for the FY 2018-19 is recommended.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD
During the Financial Year 2018-19, the board met 6 (Six) times i.e. on May 24, 2018, August 14, 2018,
October 04, 2018, November 14, 2018, December 05, 2018, and February 18, 2019, Further details related
to the board meetings of the Company are mentioned in the Corporate Governance Report-annexed as

“ANNEXURE 2, which forms part of this report.

BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF THE COMPANY’S WORKING DURING THE YEARISTATE OF COMPANY'SAFFAIR

The Company is registered with Reserve Bank of india {RBI) as Non- Deposit accepting NBFC-MFI vide
Registration No. B-14.02857 granted on January 28, 2014,

The Comgpany attained business performance by reaching out to 1,510,823 active loan clients as on March
31, 2019. The active loan clients grew from 983,840 as on March 31, 2018 to 1,510,823 as an March 31,
2019, The growth in active loan clients during the year was more than 55.92%.

The above was possible with excellent efforts of 4398 employees of the Company as on March 31, 2019,
which was 3,202 as on March 31, 2018, through 504 Branches, across 18 states and 254 districts in India.

During the year under review, the Company opened 147 new branches.

The Company already has borrowing arrangement with a large number of lenders and have started
association with a few more institutions to diversify its sources of borrowing.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IFANY




There was no change in the nature of business during the year.

9. DIRECTORS

Changes in the composition of the Board of Directors

in order to comply with the provisions of Section 149 of Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 3 of
Companies {Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, related to appointment of a
Woran Director on the beard, Ms, Ratna Pharashree Vishwanathan was appointed as an Additional
Director of the Cempany on May 24, 2018, which was subsequently regularised as Independent
Director in the Annual General Meeting held on June 26, 2018.

During FY 2018-19, Mr. Njord Andrewes, Mr. Javed Ahmad Siddiqui & Ms. Laetitia Counye,
appointed as Nominee Directors on behalf of NMI Frontier Fund KS, Small Industries Development
Bank of India & Belgian Investment Company respectively, had resigned from the position of
directorship of the Company on December 04, 2018 due transfer of shareholding by NMi Frontier
Fund KS, Small Industries Development Bank of india & Belgian Investment Company.

Mr. Narendra Ostawal was appointed as the Nominee Director on December 05, 2018 cn behaif of
Honey Rose investment Ltd, a subsidiary of certain private equity funds managed by Warburg
Pincus LLC.

A brief detail on change in the directors is given below -

S.No., Name Current designation Ongm.al date of Date of cessation
appointment
Ms. Ratna Dharashree . .
1. Vishwanathan Independent Director May 24, 2018 Not applicable
2. Mr. Njord Andrewes Nominee Director 07 March, 2013 04 December, 2018
3. Mr. Javed Ahmad Siddigui Nominee Director 12 February, 2016 | 04 December, 2018
4. Ms., Laetitia Counvye Nominee Director 08 February, 2018 04 December, 2018
5, Mr. Narendra Ostawal Nominee Director | 05 December, 2018 Mot applicable
10. GRADING AND CREDIT RATING

CARE has assigned Grading of “MFI 1” vide letter dated October 22, 2018 and Rating of "A-' on the Long-
Term Bank Facilities to the tune of INR 1,500 Cr and on Long Term Instruments- NCD to the tune of INR 85
crore. Company has also been assigned rating of ‘A’ by ICRA on NCDs of outstanding amount to INR
508.50 Crore.

11. CAPITAL ADEQUACY

The Capital Adequacy Ratio (CRAR) of the company was 27.33% as on March 31, 2019 as against the
minimum capital adequacy requirements of 15% hy RBI.

12, RESOURCE MOBILIZATION

a)

k[ rm Loan / Sub debt / Refinance




During the vear under review, the Company has diversified its sources of funds and raised a sum
of INR 1759 Crore {Inclusive of Refinance of INR 150 Crore) by way of short-term, long-term loans.

b} Secured / Unsecured Non-convertible debentures
The company raised an amount of INR 128 Crore by way of issuance of Secured/unsecured
Debentures.

¢} Asset Securitization
During the year, your Company raised resources to the extent of INR 366 Crore through
securitization.

13. SHARE CAPITAL

A. PRIMARY INFUSION OF EQUITY CAPITAL
During the FY 2018-19, the company has raised INR 300 Crore as a fresh equity investment from

Honey Rose Investment Ltd, a subsidiary of certain private equity funds managed by Warburg
Pincus LLC.

B. SECONDARY SALE
Honey Rose Investment Ltd has purchased the equity stake of NMi, SIDBI and RIF North 2, further
Creation Investments Fusion I, LLC has also participated by way of purchase of equity shares
from Belgian Investment Company. '

C. Details Regarding Issue of Equity Shares

5.No. Date of Issue Name of the allottee Category Numbsel:‘;:sequitv
1 July 16, 2018 Fusion Employees Benefit Trust Trust 549,647
2 July 16, 2018 Devesh Sachdev* Promoter 647,659
3 December 05, 2018 Honey Rose Investment Ltd Investor 19,475,461
4 December 05, 2018 Devesh Sachdev* - Promoter 1,352,454

*partly paid up shares were issued @ Re. 1/~ per share paid up

D. Details regarding Conversion of Optionaily Convertible Preference Share {OCPS)Capital

Date of category r;oe'reo:ace Number of
S.No. . Name of the allottee P aquity
conversion shares shares
converted
Small Industries Financial
1 October 15, 2018 Development Bank of India | institution 30,00,000 | 625,093

E. 15SUE OF NON CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES

In the FY 2018-19, company issued Non-convertible Debentures on private placement basis
aggregating to INR 128.00 crore. Details of the Non-Convertible Debentures issued to the zllottees

.
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in respective meetings are mentioned below:

s, Date of Price per
No Allotment Name of Allottees No. of NCD NCD {INR] Status
1 August 07, 2018 Blue Orchard Microfinance Fund 340 10,00,000 Listed
Microfinane Enhancement Facility .
2. August 07, 2018 SA, SICAV-SIF 340 10,00,600 Listed
September 27, 2018 | incofin CV50 CVBA-SO 25 1,00,00,000 Unlisted
October 22, 2018 AAV SARL 35 1,00,00,000 Unlisted
14. REDEMPTION OF NON-CONVERTISBLE DEBENTURES {(NCDs)
Following Non-convertible Debentures were redeemed during the FY 2018-19; -
5.No Particulars Date of No. of | Amount Date of Detail of
) allotment NCD | {in million) redemption redemption
1. | Microfinane Enhancement April 30, .
201
Facility SA, SICAV-SIF 2015 240 10,00,000 April 30, 2018 Fully
Partial
2. Hinduja Leyland Finance September August 31, 2018, [redemption of
Limited 04, 2017 200 10,00,000 February 28, 2019 INR
6,66,66,800/-
3| aavsant J”;&io’ 426 | 10,00,000 | August 13, 2018 Fully
4. | Blue Orchard {Microfinance |December 24,
Initiative for Asia) 2014 220 10,00,000 | December 16, 2018 Fully

15.

ISSUE OF SHARES UNDER EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION SCHEME

The Company has a stock option plan under ESOP Scheme 2014 and 2016 for its employees. As on March
31, 2019, the following stock option grants were in operation:

Number of options granted during the year 434,720
Number of options vested during the year 232,324
Number of aptions exercised during the year 94,322
Tetal number of shares arising out as a result of exercise of option

: 94,322
during the year
Options lapsed during the year 33,373

Exercise price

20.55/27.08/37.99/64.08/110

Variation in terms of options

Maney realized by exercise of options 2,725,315
Total number of options in force 1,198,643
The options shall vest on graded basis as follows.
On completion of 1 year 25%
On comgpletion of 2 years 25%
On completion of 3 years 25%

.ﬁ\g,/-



On completion of 4 years 25%

EMPLOYEE WISE DETAIL OF THE OPTIONS GRANTED TO:~

¢ TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL DURING THE YEAR

N f Key M erial Options
ame of Rey Vanageria Deslgnation pti Exercise Price
Personnel granted
Mr. Gaurav Maheshwari CFO 40,000 110

Mr. Deepak Madaan Company Secretary 10,000 110

* ANY EMPLOYEE WHO RECEIVES A GRANT OF OPTION IN ANY ONE YEAR OF OPTION
AMOUNTING TO 5% CR MORE OF OPTIONS GRANTED DURING FY 2018-19:

FINANCIAL YEAR 2018-19
Mr. Tarun Mehndiratta 50,000
Mr. Gaurav Maheshwari 40,000
Ms. Lekshmi Bhargavi 30,000
Mr. Ankush Ahluwalia 25,000

s« EMPLOYEES WHO WERE GRANTED OPTIONS DURING ANY ONE YEAR, EQUAL TO OR EXCEEDING
1% OF THE ISSUED CAPITAL (EXCLUDING OUTSTANDING WARRANTS AND CONVERSIONS) OF
THE COMPANY AT THE TIME OF GRANT: NiL

16. COMMITTEES DETAILS

The Company has 8 committees which govern and oversee different areas of the Company’s operations
ensuring regular guidance and monitoring.

For further details piease refer to Corporate Governance Report, which form the part of Directors’ Report.

17. _RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All transactions entered into with related parties as defined in the Companies Act 2013 during the year
under review were in the ordinary course of business and at an arm’s length pricing basis and do not
attract the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act 2013,

Details of the related party transactions, which are exempted according to a proviso to Section 188 of the
under the Companies Act 2013, during the Financial Year 2018-19 are disclosed in the financial
statements.

The policy on Related Party Transactions, as approved by the Board, is displayed on the website of the
Company i.e. www.fusionmicrofinance.com

18. AUDITCR’S REPORT AND SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT




The auditor’s report and the secretarial audit report do not contain any qualifications, reservations, or
adverse remarks. Secretarial audit report is atfached as “ANNEXURE 3”.

19. AUDITORS

I. Statutory Auditors:

Under Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2012 and rules made thereunder, it is mandatory to rotate
the statutory auditors on completion of the maximum term permitted under the section, The audit
committee of the Company has proposed & the Board has recommended the appointment of S.R.
Batliboi & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants, as the statutory auditors of the Company. S.R.
Batlibo! & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants, will hold office for a period of five consecutive
years from the conclusion of the 25" Annual General Meeting of the Company till the conclusion of
the 30™ Annual General Meeating to be held in 2024. The first year of audit will be of the financial
statements for the year ending March 31, 2020, which will include the audit of the half yearly
financial statements for the vear.

I, Secretarial Auditor:

M, Alok Chandra, Practicing Company Secretary (FCS No. 7970 and Certificate of Practice No, 8576)
was appointed as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company to conduct Secretarial Audit of the
Company for the Financial Year 2018-15 as required under Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013
and the Rules made there under. '

20. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

During the year under review the company has not given any loan or guarantee to any person or any
other body corporate u/s 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

21. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

22,

23,

During the year under review, the Company did not enter into any transactions that cover under related
party as specified in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013.The details related to the
sarme are annexed as "ANNEXURE 4” in Form AQC-2,

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENTDIRECTORIS)

The Company has received necessary declarations of independence from each of its independent
Directors under section 149{7) of the Companies Act, 2013, that he/she meets the criteria of Independent
Director envisaged in section 149 (b} of the Companies Act, 2013.

POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION AND OQTHER DETAILS

The remuneration policy of the Company is an appropriate mix of executive, non-executive and
independent directors to maintain the independence of the board, and separate its functions of
governance and management. As on March 31, 2019, the board had 7 members, 1 of whom was
executive director, 5 non-executive directors out of which 3 were independent directors. The Company
has 1 independent Women Director in the board.




24,

25.

26.

27,

The policy of the Company on directors’ appointment and remuneration and other matters required
under Section 178(3) of the Act is available on our website at www.fusicnmicrofinance.com.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION BETWEEN THE END OF THE
FINANCIAL YEAR AND DATE OF THE REPORT

During the year, there is no material change in the nature of business of the Company which have occurred
subsegquent to the close of the financial year of the Company to which the balance sheet relates and the
date of the report.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY & TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND
OUTGO IN THE MANNER AS PRESCRIBED IN RULE 8{3) OF THE COMPANIES {ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014

Censervation of energy and technology absorption

Since the Company does not own any manufacturing facility, the particulars relating to conservation of
energy and technology absorption are not applicable.

The Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo
The Company neither had any foreign exchange earnings nor any such cutgo during the year under review,

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board of Directors of the Company has formed a board risk management committee to frame,
implement, and monitor the risk management plan for the Company. The committee is responsible for
reviewing the risk management plan, ensuring its effectiveness and verifying adherence to various risk
parameters. The Company’s Risk Management strategy is based on clear understanding of various risks,
disciplined risk assessment and continuous monitoring. The Risk Management Committee reviews various
risks with which the organization is exposed including Credit Risk, Interest Rate Risk, Liquidity Risk and
Operational Risk, The development and implementation of risk management policy has been covered in
the Management Biscussion and Analysis Repert, attached as “ANNEXURE 5”.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONS!BILITY

The Company is at the forefront of Corporate Social Responsibility {CSR) and sustainability initiatives and
practices. It believes in making lasting impact towards creating a just, equitable, humane and sustainable
society. The Company has been involved with social initiatives in varicus activities in the field of education,
primary healthcare and communities, environment, etc.

As per the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, companies having net worth of INR 500
crore or mare, or turnover of INR 1,000 crore or more or a net profit of INR5 crore or more during the
immediately preceding financial vear are required to constitute a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
committee of the Board comprising three or more directors, at least one of whom should be an
independent director and such company shall spend at least 2% of the average net profits of the
company's three immediately preceding financial years towards CSR activities.

Accordingly, Fusion has spent INR 62,62,168/- towards CSR activities during the financial year 2018-19.

i, ool
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29,

30.

31,

32,

The detail of the CSR Report for the year 2018-19 is attached as “ANNEXURE 6” to this Report. Contents
of the (SR policy is also available on the Company's  website at

http:/fwww fusionmicrofinance.com/pdf/fusion CSR_Policy.pdf,

ANNUAL PERFORMANCE EVALUATION BY THE BOARD

A formal evaluation of the performance of the Board, the Chairman and the individual Directors was
carried out for the financial year 2018-19 led by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee. The
evaluation was done using individual guestionnaires. As part of the evaluation process, the performance
evaluation of Board as a whole was done by the Directors of the Beard. The performance evaluation of
the Promoter Director, Nominge Directors and Non-Independent directors was done by the every other
Director. The performance evaluation of the Independent Directors was done by the Board excluding the
Director being evaluated. The performance evaluaticn of the board committees was done by respective
committee members, The Directors expressed satisfaction with the evaluation process.

DETAILS OF ESTABLISHMENT OF VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY FOR DIRECTORS AND
EMPLOYEES

Your Company has an effective Vigil Machanism system/Whistle Blower Policy which is embedded in its
Code of Conduct. The Code of Conduct of your Company serves as a guide for daily business interactions,
reflecting your Company's standard for appropriate behavior and living Corporate Values. The Code of
Conduct applies to all Fusion’s People, including Directors, Officers, and all employees of the Company.

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY/JOINT VENTURES/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

The Company does not have any subsidiary or associate, nor has entered into any joint venture with any
organization.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR
TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE

During FY 2018-19, no significant and material orders were passed by any regulator or court or tribunal
impacting the going concern status and Company’s operations in future.

INYERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

in pursuant to the Section 134(5} (e} of the Companies Act, 2013, The Company has adequate internal
controls and processes in place with respect to its operations, which provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reHability of the preparation of financial statements and financial reporting as also
functioning of other operations. The Company is following an effective internal control system
commensurate with its size and operations. These controls and processes are driven through various
policies and procedures. In addition to this the work process is designed in such a way that process of
internal check is ensured at all levels.

It alsc ensures the adoption of all policies & procedures for orderly and efficient conduct of its business,

including adherence to the Company’s Policy, the safeguarding of its assets, prevention and detection of
fraud & error, the accuracy & completeness of the accounting records and the timely preparation of

reliable financial information.
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UAL ME

Pursuant to the requirements of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition &
Redressal) Act, 2013, your Company has 3 policy and framework for employees to report sexual
narassment cases at workplace and our process ensures complete anonymity and confidentiality of
information. Acequate workshops and awareness programmes against sexual harassment aré conducted
across the organization. No complaints were received during the financial year 2018-19. The Company
also has complied with provisions relating to the constitution of intarnal Complaints Committee under
the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013,

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Fusion’s governance framework is driven by the objective of enhancing long term stakeholder value
withaut compromising on ethical standards and corporate social responsibilities. Efficient corporate
governance requires a clear understanding of the respective roles of the Board of Directors ("Board”) and
of senior management and their relationships with others in the corporate structure. Sincerity, fairness,
good citizenship and commitment 1o compliance are key characteristics that drive relationships of the
Board and senior management with other stakeholders.

Your Company believes in adopting bast & transparent practices of corporate goveraance. Corporate
governance principles are enshrined in the Spirit of Fusion, which form the core values of Fusion. These
guiding principles are also articulated through the Company’s code of business conduct, Corporate
Governance guidelines & charter of various sub-committees,

A detailed report on the Company’s commitment at adopting good Corporate Governance Praclicas s
enclosed as “ANNEXURE 2".

RI N
Details of the remuneration as required to be provided pursuant to Section 197(12) of Companias Act,
2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial personnel} Rules,
2014 is attached as "ANNEXURE 7. ?

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Sectian 134{3)(c) of the Companies Act 2013, the Directors of the Company hereby state and
confirm that:

a. In the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019, the
applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanations relating to
material departures, if any;

b. The directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give 3 true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profits of the company for
that period;

¢. ‘The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adegusats accounting
records in accordanre with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and

- -
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38,

-

for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;
d. The Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

e. The directors had laid down internal financial controls to be foliowed by the company, and that such
internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.

f. The Directers had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems were adeguate and operating effectively.

RBI GUIDELINES

The Company is registered with the Reserve Bank of Indiz as a NBFC within the provisions of the NBFC
{Reserve Bank of india) Directions, 1998. The Company continues to comply with all the requirements
prescribed by the Reserve Bank of india as applicable to it.

LISTING
During the year, the company has issued Non-Convertible Debentures, out of which some debentures

were listed on Bombay Stock Exchange. The listing fees to the Stock Exchange for the financial year 2019-
20 has been duly paid.
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(Director)
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{MD & CEQO)
DIN: 02547111

Place: New Delhi
Dated: May 27, 2019



Annexure -1

FORM NO. MGT 9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

as on financial year ended on 31.03.2019

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company
(Management & Administration } Rules, 2014.

REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

CIN

U65100DL1994PTCO61287

Reglstration Date

Monday, September 5, 1594

Mame of the Company

Fuslon Micro Finance Private Limited

iv Category/Sub-category of the Company Private Company NBFC-MF]
Address of the Registered office H-1, C-Block, Community Centre, Naraina Vihar, New
V| &contact detalls Delhi-110028
Yes,the Non Convertible Debentures of the company
vi Whether listed company are listed. However Equity shares of the company were
not listed as on March 31, 2013
Link Intime India Private Limited
C-13, Pannalal Silk Mills Compound, LBS Marg,
Bhandup (West}, Mumbai - 400 078.
Mame, Address & contact details of the Tel. No.: 91 22 2594 6970;
vii Registrar & Transfer Agent, if any. Fax No.. +51 22 2504 6969
E-mail: rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in
Wehsite: www linkintime.co.in
It PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACYIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
All the business activities contributing 1.0% or more of the total turnover of the company shalt be
stated
LN Name & Description of main NIC Code of the %to totalt fth
° products/services Product [service ototatturnover ofihe company
1 Micrefinance and related activities 64990 100.00%
{# PARTICULARS OF HOLDING , SUBSIDIARY 8 ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
Sl No Name & Address of the Company CIN/GLN HOLDING/ % DOF | APPLICABLE
SUBSIDIARY/ SHARES SECTION
ASSDCIATE HELD
1 NA MA MA WA NA
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(L)

SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share capital Break up as % to total Equity)

Category of
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year

{As on 31- March-2018]

No. of Shares held at the end of the year
{As on 21-March- 2019]

change
during
the year

Damat

Physical

Total

% of
Total
Shares

% of Total

Demat Physical Total
Ve Shares

A, Promoters

{1} Indian

a}
Individual/HUF

3,004,037

3,004,037

6.97%

5,010,150 - 5010,150 | 7.62%

0.65%

k) Central
Govt.or
State Govt.

¢) Bodies
Corporates

d) Bank/F!

e) Any other

5UB TOTAL:{A]
(1)

3,004,037

3,004,037

B.897%

5,010,150 - 5,010,150 7.62%

0.65%

{2) Foreign

a) NRI-
tndividuals

b) Other
individuals

c} Bodies Corp.

d) Banks/Ft

e) Any other..,

SUBTOTAL{A)
{2)

0.00%

- . - 0.00%

0.00%

Total
Shareholding of
Promoter

(a)=
(A)1)+{A](2)

3,004,037

3,004,037

6.97%

5,010,150 - 5,010,150 1.62%

0.65%

B. PUBLIC
SHAREHOLDING

{1) institutions

a) Mutual Funds

b} Banks/F|

C) Cenntral govt

d} State Govt.




ey Venture
Capital Fund

f} Insurance
Companies

gl Fiis

h) Foreign
Venture
Capital Funds

iy Others
[specify)

SUB TOTAL
(B){1):

0.00%

- 0.00% 0.00%

(2) Non
[nstitutions

a) Bodles
corporates

i) Indian

i} Dverseas

19,001,181

20,129,144

39,130,325

90.85%

47,489,584

11,741,295

59,230,879 | 90.13% | -0.73%

i) individuals

i) individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital
upta Rs. fakhs

17,993

17,993 0.03% 0.03%

it} Individuals
sharehoiders
holding nominal
share capital in
excess of Rs. 1
lakhs

¢} Others
{Employees/
Trust}

935,812

935,912

217%

1,461,566

1,461,566 2.22% 0.05%

SUB TOTAL
{B}2):

19,001,181

21,065,056

40,066,237

93.03%

47,489,584

13,220,854

60,710,438 | 92.38% | -0.65%

Total Puhlic
Shareholding
{B)= {R)(1)+(B)(2)

19,001,181

21,065,056

40,066,237

93.03%

47,489,584

12,220,854

60,710,438 | 92.38% | -0.65%

€. Shares held

by Custodian
for GDAs & ADRs

Grand Total
{A+B+C)

22,005,218

21,065,056

43,070,274

52,499,734

13,220,854

65,720,588 | 100.00% -




i} SHAREHOLDING OF PROMOTERS

% change in
5 . shareholding
No. | Shareholders Sharehclding at'lthe beginning of the Shareholding at the during the
Name year Aprit 01, 2018 end of the year March 31, 2019 year
9% of total % of shares % af shares
pledged No of % of total shares pledged
No of shares| shares of the
compa encumbered to| shares of the company | encumbered to
. pany total shares total shares
Devesh Sachdev | 2,704,037 6.28% - 4,710,150 7.17% - 0.89%
Mini Sachdev 300,000 0.70% - 300,000 0.45% - -0.25%
Tetal 2,004,032 6.98% - 5,010,150 7.62% - 0.64%

(i} CHANGE IN PROMOTERS' SHAREHOLDING { SPECIFY IF THERE IS NO CHANGE)

S. CHANGE IN PROMOTERS' Sharehelding at the baginning of the Cumulative Shareholding
Mo. SHAREHOLDING Year during the year
No. of Shares % of total shares of No of shares % of total shares
the company of the company
1 DEVESH SACHDEV
At the heginning of the year 2,704,037 6.28% 2,704,037 6.28%
Aliotment of partly paid equity shares
on 16/07/2018 547,650 1.29% 3,351,695 7.57%
Aliatment of partly paid equity shares
on 05/12/2018 1,352,454 2.06% 4,704,150 7.16%
Transfer on 29/12/2018 6,000 0.01% 4,710,150 7.17%
At the end of the year 4,710,150 9.63% 4,710,150 2.17%

{iv] Sharehoiding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters & Holders of GDRs & ADRs)

S.
No

Shareholding at the beginning of

the year

Cumulative Shareholding during
the year

Far Each of the Top 10 Shareholders

No. of shares

% of total shares
of the company

No. of Shares

% of total shares

of the company

At the beginning of the year

Aflotment on 05/12/2018 19,475,461 29.63% - -
Transfer on 05/12/2018 9,152,989 12.93% 28,629,450 43.56%
At the end of the year - - 28,629,450 43.56%

rt

g Eusio

At the beginning of the year

15,321,043

Date wise increase/decrease during
the year

At the end of the year

At the beginning of the year

6,606,375

Date wise increase/decrease during
the year

At the end of the year

6,606,375

& astm ;L

At the beginning of the year

5,134,020

5,134,920

Transfer on 05/12/2048
N




jr 5,134,92

4

2,539,001

Date wise increase/decrease during
the year

At the end of the year

sion Empl efi
At the beginning of the year 898,234 2.09% - -
Aliotment on 16/07/2018 549,647 0.11% 1,447 881 2.20%
Transfer on 14/08/2013 {46,895) {0.07%} 1,400,986 2.13%
Yransfer on 14/11/2018 {12,75¢) {0.029) 1,388,236 2.11%
Transfer on 18/02/2019 {34,677) {0.05%} 1,353,559 2.06%

1,353,559

At the beginning of the y.é:.:r

0.02%

10,750 0.02% 10,750
options exercised on 14/11/201% 12,750 0.02% 23,500 0.04%
opticns exercised on 18/02/2019 10,750 0.01% 34,250 0.05%
At the end of the year - - 34,250 0.05%

AE the beginning of the year

options exercised on 14/08/2018

19,500

0.03%

At the end of the year

19,500

0.03%

At the beginning of the year 19,528 0.04% 19,928 0.04%
options exercised on 14/08/2018 23,065 0.02% 42,993 0.06%
Transfer on 29/12/2018 {25,000) {0.03%) 17,993 0.03%
At the end of the year - - 17,893

L ) armia

At the beginning of the year

7,000 0.01% 7,000 0.01%

Transfer on 29/12/2018 1,000 0.001% 8,000 0.01%

options exercised on 18/02/2019 7,000 0.01% 15,00¢ 0.02%

At the end of the year - - 15,000 0.02%
v} Shareholding of Directors & KMP
S5, Sharehelding at the Shareholding at the % ch:nge i
No _— share

beginning of the year end of the year holding
% oftotal | % of shares % of total | % of shares
ledged
For Each of the No of sharhes of P bg dt ho of shar:s of encE::dbﬁf:d to
Directors B KMP shares the encumBErecio | hares the
company | total shares company total shares

1 {Devesh Sachdev 2,704,037 | 6.28% - 4,710,150 7.17% - 0.89%
2 | Nitin Gupta - - - - - . .
3 | Njord Andrewes* - - - - - .
4 | Pradip Kumnar Saha - - - - R .
5 | Albert Hofsink - - - - - - .
6 Javed Ahmad i i A i A )

Siddiqui™*
7 Kenneth Dan Vander i} )

Weele ) A " -
& | Laetitia Counye* - - - - - R -
9 | Narendra Ostawal** - - - - - .

fatna
10 Vishwanathan** ) ) - T ) - -
11 | beepak Madaan - “ - - - - _
12 | Gaurav Maheshwari - - - - . ) !

* Mr. Njord Andr

s, Mr. Javed Ahmad Siddiqui & Ms. Laetitio Counye resigned w.e.f December 04, 2018,
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INDEBTEDNESS

Indektedness of the Company including interest cutstandingfacerued but not due for payment

Sacured Loans
axciuding deposits

Unsecured Loans

Deposits

Total
indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning
of the financial yaar

i} Principal Amount 14,377,975,834 1,670,000,000 - 16,047,975,834
i} Interest due but not paid - - - -

i) Interest accrued but not due 152,236,680 4,446,812 - 156,683,492
Total {i+ii+itl) 14,530,212,514 1,674,446,812 - 16,204,659,326

Change in Indebtadness during
the financial year

Additions 18,869,166,666 - - 18,869,166,666
Reduction (7,992,466,992) (384,058,508) - {8,376,525,500)
Net Change 10,876,699,674 {384,058,508) . 10,492,641,166

indebtedness at the end of the
financial year

i} Principal Amount

25,246,155,922

1,240,545,455 -

26,486,701,377

ii} Interest due but not paid 294,391 - - 250,391
iii) Interest accrued but not due 160,465,875 49,842,849 - 210,308,724
Total (i+ii+iii) 25,406,912 ,188 1,290,388,304 - 26,697,300,492

VI REMUNERATION CF DIRECTDRS AND KEY MAMAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whoie time director and/or Manager:

S.
No

Particulars of Remuneration

Mr. Devesh Sachdev
DIN- 02547111
(WD & CED)

Total Amount

Gross salary

{a} Salary as per pravisions containedin
section 17{1} of the income Tax. 1961.

8,649,609

8,649,609

(b} Value of perquisites ufs 17(2) of the
Inceyne tax Act, 1961

{c ) Profits in liew of salary under section
17(3) of the Income Tax Act, 1961

Stock aption

Sweat Equity

Commission

as % of profit

others {Bonus)

32,000,000

3,000,000

Cthers, please specify

Total {A)

11,649,609

11,649,509

Ceiling as per the Act
M,




B. Remuneration to other directors:

No

Njord
Nitin
Gupta

Particulars of

Remuneration .

Andrewes

Kenneth
Dan
Vander
Weele

Pradip
Kumar
Saha

Alhert
Hofsink

Javed
Ahmad
Siddigui*

Laetitla
Caunye*

Ratna
Vishwanath
an*a&

Narendra
Dstawal**

TOTAL

Independent
Directors

(a} Fee for attending
board committee
meetings

420,000 -

460,600 - - -

380,000 -

1,260,000

{b) Cornmission

{c}Others,
specify

please

Totat {1}

1,260,000

Other Non-Executive
Directors

{a) Fee for attending
board committee - -
meetings

{b} Commission

{c)Others,
specify.

please

Total {2}

Total {B}=(1+2)

Total Managerial

Remuneration 420,000 )

460,000 - - .

380,000 -

1,260,000

Cverall Celling as per
the Act

* M. Njord Andrewes, Mr. laved Ahmad Siddiqui & Ms. Laetitia Counye resigned w.e.f December 04, 2018,

**MSs. Rotna Vishwanathan & Mr. Narendra Ostawal were appointed w.e f Moy 24, 2018 & December 05, 2018 respectively.

C. REMUNERATION YO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD

5.

No.

Particiars of Remuneration

Key Managetial Personnel

Total

Gross Salary

wir, Deepak Madaan
{Company Secretary)

Mr. Gaurav Maheshwari
{Chief Financtal Officer)

Total

{a) Salary as per provisions
contained in section 17(1) of the
Income Tax Act, 1961

1,353,944

4,476,112

5,830,056

{b) Value of perquisites ufs 17(2)
of the Income Tax Act, 1961

{c ) Profits in lieu of salary under section
17{3} of the Income Tax Act, 3951

*Stock Option

Sweat Equity

Commission

as % of profit

Qthers {Bonus)

550,000 875,000

1,425,000

Others, please specify

Total

1,903,944

5,351,112

7,255,056

*During the Year 2018-18, 10,000 stock aptions were granted te Company Secretary & 40,000 were granted to Chief Financial Officer

under ESOP Scheme 2




Vil PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES

Details of
Penalty/Punish Authority
. eal made i
Section?fthe Brief ment/Compoun [RD/NCLT/C Apl:g details)
Type Companies Act Description ding fees ourt) any (give details
imposed
A, COMPANY
Penalty ) - -
Punishment ) - - -

Compounding

B. DIRECTORS

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

ard of Directors
e Prwate hmlted
- O

S fapt

e Pradip Kumar Saha
: ?{D[rector}
fg;sy DIN: 02947368

*,

Devesh Sachdey
(MP & CEQ)
DIN: G2547111



Annexure 2
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE

Corporate Governance is more than just adherence to the statutory and regulatory requirements. It is
equally about focusing on voluntary practices that underlie the highest levels of transparency & propriety.

The Company’'s philosophy on corporate governance oversees business strategies and ensures
transparent fiscal accountability, ethical corporate behavior and fairness to ali stakeholders comprising
regulators, employees, customers, vendors, investors and the society at large. Fusion has laid a strong
foundation for making Corporate Governance a way of life by having a mix of persons of eminence and
integrity at Board and leadership levels, including competent professionals across the organization and
putting in place best systems, processes and technology.

Over the years, we have strengthened governance practices. These practices define the way business is
conducted and value is generated. Stakeholders’ interests are taken into account, before making any
business decision. We believe, Corporate Governance is not just a destination, but a journey to constantly
improve sustainable value creation. It is an upward-moving target that we collectively strive towards
achieving.

A detailed report on the Company’s commitment at adopting good Corporate Governance Practices is
shared below -

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (“BOARD”):

The Board critically evaluates the Company’s strategic direction, management policies and their
effectiveness. The agenda for the Board reviews include strategic review from each of the Committees, a
detailed analysis and review of annual strategic and operating plans, capital allocation and budgets.
Additionally, the Board reviews related party transactions, possible risks and risk mitigation measures,
financial reports and business reports. Frequent and detailed interaction sets the agenda and provides
the strategic roadmap for the Company’s future growth,

The primary role of the Board is that of trusteeship to protect and enhance shareholder value through
strategic direction to the Company. As trustees, the Board has fiduciary responsibility to ensure that the
Company has clear goals aligned to shareholder value and its growth. The Board exercises its duty with
carg, skill and ditigence and exercises independent judgement, It sets strategic goals and seeks
accountability for their fulfillment. It also directs and exercises appropriate conirol to ensure that the
Company is managed in a manner that fulfills stakeholder’s aspirations and societal expectations,

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

As on March 31, 2019, the hoard had 7 members, 1 of whom was executive dire.ctor, 6 non-executive
directors out of which 3 were independent directors including 1 independent woman director.

The maximum tenure of independent directors is in compliance with the Act. All the Independent
Directors have confirmed that they meet the criteria of independence as mentioned under Section 149(6)
of the Act.




None of the Non-Executive Directors held any equity shares or convertible instruments of the Company
during the financial year endad March 31, 2019.

Change in Directorship during the FY 2018-19

5.No. Name Current designation Original date of Date of cessation
appointment
1. m:hazt::t}?::rashree Independent Director iMay 24, 2018 Neot applicable
2. Mr. Njord Andrewes Nominee Director 07 March, 2013 04 Decemnber, 2018
3. Mr. Javed Ahmad Siddiqui Nominee Director 12 February, 2016 04 December, 2018
4, Ms. Laetitia Counye Nominee Director 08 February, 2018 | 04 December, 2018
5. Mr. Narendra Ostawal Nominee Director | 05 December, 2018 Mot applicable

BOARD MEETINGS & ATTENDANCE

The Board of Directors is the apex body constituted by shareholders for overseeing the Company’s overall
functioning. The Board provides and evaluates the Company’s strategic direction, management policies
and their effectiveness, and ensures that shareholders’ long-term interests are being served. The
Company’s internal guidelines for Board / Committee meetings facilitate decision-making process at its
meetings in an informed and efficient manner,

The Company decide about the Beard meeting dates in advance in consultation with Board of Directors
and the respective committee members. Once approved, the schedule of the Board meetings and
Committee meetings is communicated to the Directors to enable them to attend the meetings.

The Company Secretary of the Company draft the agenda for each meeting, along with explanatory notes,
in consultation with the MD & CEQ, and distribute these in advance to the directors & respective
committee members. Every member of the beoard/committee can suggest the inclusion of additional items
in the agenda. The Board meets at least once a quarter to review the quarterly results and other items on
the agenda, and also on the occasion of the AGM. Additional meetings are held when necessary. The board
has unrestricted access 1o all Company-related information, including that of our employees. At Board
meetings, managers and representatives who can provide additional insights into the items being discussed
are invited.

As a practice, the Company Secretary communicates all important decisions taken by the Board Members/
Committee Members to the functional head of the concerned departments. An Action Taken Report (ATR)
on the decisions taken and matters discussed in the previous meeting is outlined and placed in the
succeeding meeting of the Board/ Board Committee for their consideration/information and noting.

There are no inter-se relationships between the Board of Directors of the Company.
During the Financial Year 2018-19, the board met 6 {Six] times i.e. on May 24, 2018, August 14, 2018,

Cctober 04, 2018, November 14, 2018, December 05, 2018, and February 18, 2019. The details of the Board
Meetings along with the attendance of each Director at the respective Board Meeting is tabled below:




Attendance of Directors during fiscal 2019

No of No. of
No. of No. of other committees in
Name of Category board board Whether | Companies which
Director of Designation | meetings | meetings | [ast AGM in director/member
Directors heldin | attended | attended which is a member /
FY19 in FY19 hefshe is chairman
Director
Promaoter Managing
S[;i:iiset:; and Director & (] 6 Yes i 6
Executive CEQ
Albert Non- Nominee
Hofsink Executive Director € 6 No ) 2
- Non- Independent
Nitin Gupta Executive Director 6 6 No 6 3
Pradip Non- Independent
Kumar Saha | Executive Director 6 6 No 1 3
Kenneth Dan Non- Nominee
Vander Executive Director 6 6 No 3 1
Weele
*Ratna
Dharashree Non- IndE.ependent 6 5 No 5 3
i Executive Director
Vishwanathan
**Narendra Non- Nominee
Ostawal Executive Director 1 1 NA 12 3
ANjord Non- Mominee
Andrewes Executive Director 4 1 No 2 Reslgned
Maved Non- Nominee
Ahmad Executive Director 4 2 No 1 Resigned
Siddiqui
As, Laetitia Non- Nominee .
Counye Executive Director 4 4 No ) Resigned

*Ms. Ratng Dharashree Vishwanathan was appointed as Additional Director w.e.f May 24, 2018, further regularized
as an independent Director w.e.f June 26, 2018.

**Mr. Narendra Ostawal was appointed us a Nominee Director on behalf of Honey Rose investment Ltd w.e.f
December 05, 2018,

AMr. Njord Andrewes, Mr. Javed Ahmad Siddiqui & Ms. Laetitia Counye resigned w.e.f. December 04, 2018

COMPOSITION OF COMMITTEES

The Company, as on March 31, 2019 had eight committees, Audit Committee, Nomination and
Remuneration Committee, Corporate Social Responsibility Committee, Asset 8 Liability Management
Committee, Board Risk Management Committee, Working Committee, Debenture Allotment Committee
& Information Technology Strategy Committee,

The Company's guidelines relating to Board meetings are applicable to Committee meetings. Minutes of
proceedings of Committee meetings are circulated to the committee members and placed before Board
meetings for noting.

Our Board has constituted sub-committees to focus on specific areas and make informed decisions within
the authority delegated to each of the Committees. Each Committee of the Board is guided by its Charter,




which defines the scope, powers and composition of the Committee. All decisions and recommendations
of the Committees are placed before the Board for information or approval. During the financial year, the
Board has accepted the recommendations of Committees on matters where such a recommendation is
mandatorily required. There have been no instances whetre such recommendations have not been
considered.

The Committees of the Board meet at regular intervals and have the requisite subject expertise to handie
and resolve matters expediently. The Board oversees the functioning of the Committees. The Chairman
of the respective Committees briefs the Board on significant discussions and decision taken at their
respective meetings, Minutes of the Committee Meetings are placed in the subsequent Board Meeting
for their noting.

The Company Secretary acts as a Secretary to all the Committees of the Board. Detailed terms of

reference, compositicn, meetings and other information of each of the Committees of the Board are
detailed herein below:

1. AUD{T COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee is made with the primary cbjective to monitor and provide an effective supervision
of the management’s financial reporting process, to ensure accurate and timely disclosures, with the
highest leveis of transparency, integrity and quality of financial reporting as a measure of good Corporate
Governance and also to meet the statutory provisions of the NBFC Regulations and Companies Act, 2013.
Majority of the members of the Committee are Independent Directors and all the members of the Audit
Committee have the required qualification and expertise for appeintment on the Committee and possess
requisite knowledge of accounting and financial management,

The Company Secretary acts as Secretary to this Committee.

Composition

During the financial vear ended March 31, 2019, the committee met 4 times, i.e. on 24 May 2018, 14
August 2018, 14 November 2018 & 18 February 2019.

The composition & attendance during the financial year ended March 31, 2019 are as follows -

. Number of meetings
Name of the Director Category Held during tenure Attended
AMr. Nitin Gupta (Chairman} Independent Director 4 4
Mr. Pradip Kumar Saha independent Birector 4 4
*Mr. Narendra Ostawal Nominee Director 1 1
**Mr. Albert Hofsink Nominee Director 3 3

designated as Chairman of the committee w.e.f. January 30, 2019,
*appointed as member of the committee w.e.f. fanuory 30, 2019,
**Ceased to be the member of the Committee upon resignation from the Board w.e.f. December (4, 2018.

Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee is as follows:

A) Financial Reporting




The Committee shal! review the following:

The consistency of, and any changes to accounting policies.

The methods used to account for significant or unusual transactions where different approaches are
possible,

Whether the company has followed appropriate accounting standards and made appropriate
estimates and judgement, taking into account the views of the external auditor.

The clarity of disclosures in the company’s financial reports and the context in which statements are
made.

All material information presented with the financial statements, such as the business review /
operating and financial review; and

All related party transactions.

B) Internal Audit
The Committee shall review the following:

Monitor & review the effectiveness of the Company's internal audit function in the context of the
‘overall Risk Management System,

Approve the appointment & removal of internal auditor

Review and assess the annual internal audit pian.

Review reports from the internal auditor.

Review and monitor the findings & recommendations of the internal auditor.

C) External Audit
The Committee shall review the following:

-

Consider and makes recommendations to the Board in relation to appointment & removal of
company’s external auditors. The Committee shall oversee the selection process of a new auditor and,
if an auditor resigns, the Committee shall investigate the issues leading to his resignation and decide
whether any action is required.

Review and monitor the external auditor's independence, objectivity and the effectiveness of the
audit process, which shall include a report from the external auditor on their own internal quality
procedures.

Oversee the relationship with the external auditor including (but not limited to)

a. Recommendations on their remuneration, whether fees for audit & non audit services, and that

the level of fees is appropriate to enable an adequate audit to be conducted.

b. Approval of their terms of engagement, including any engagement letter issued at the start of

each audit and the scope of audit.

c. Satisfying itself that there are nc relationship (such as family, employment, investment, financial

or business) between the auditor and the company (cther than in the ordinary course of business).

d. Monitor the auditor's compliance with reievant ethical & professional guidance on the rotation of

audit partner.
The Committee shall meet the external auditor at least once a year, without the executive being
present, to discuss the auditor's report and any issue arising from the audit.
Review and approve the annual audit plan and ensure that it is consistent with the scope of the




audit engagement.
e Review the findings of the audit with external auditor. This shallinclude:-
1. Discussion of any major issues which arose during the audit.
2. Any accounting & audit judgements.
3. Level of errors identified during the audit.
4. The effectiveness of the audit.

Besides, the audit committee shall oversee the vigil mechanism. The vigil mechanism shall provide for
adequate safeguard against victimization of employees and directors who avail the vigil mechanism.

The Committee also review the quarterly financial statements {unaudited} and also place them before the
Board for their approval on the same.

In addition to the above the Audit Committee also put various suggestions to the Board on review of policy
and how to further strengthen the process in future.

2. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) COMMITTEE
Composition
The CSR Committee consists of three (3) Members including two (2) Independent Director, The committee

was last reconstituted on January 30, 2019 due to resignation of Ms. Laetitia Counye & Mr. Albert Hofsink
from the Board of the Company.

During the financial year ended March 31, 2019, the committee met 3 times, i.e. on 23 May 2018, 14
Novermnber 2018 & 18 February 2018,

The composition & attendance during the financial year ended March 31, 2019 are as follows —

Name of the Direct Catepo Number of meetings
€ @ Director Eory Held during tenure Attended
. .
Mr.' Pradip Kumar Saha Independent Director 3 3
(Chairman)
Managing Director, 3 3
Mr. Devesh Sachdev Executive Director
*Ms, Ratna Vishwanathan independent Director 1 1
**Mr, Albert Hofsink Nominee Director 1 1
**Ms. Laetitia Counye Nominee Director 1 1

Adesignated as Chairman of the committee w.e.f. January 30, 2019,

*appointed as member of the committee w.e.f. January 30, 2018.

*¥Ceased to be the members of the Committee upon their resignation from the Board w.e.f. December 04, 2018.
Terms of Reference

The terms of reference of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee include:

» Formulate and recommend 1o the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy which shall indicate
the activities to be undertaken by the Company as specified in Schedule VIi.to Companies Act, 2013




e Recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities referred toin clause {a) ahove;
and

¢ Maonitor the Corporate Social Responsibility Pelicy of the Company from time te time.
The CSR policy is duly adhere to and in compliance with the Act inforce.

3. REMUNERATION & NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the regulations framed by Reserve Bank of india, the Company being a Non Deposit taking
Non-Banking Finance Company has a Remuneration & Nomination Committee for the appointment of
Directors of the Company. The committee shall also carry out evaluation of every director's performance
and support the Board and Independent Directors in evaluation of the performance of the Board, its
committees and the Directors of the Company.

Composition and Attendance at Meetings:

The Remuneration & Nomination committee comprises of four {4) members including two (2)
Independent Directors. The Committee was last reconstituted on January 30, 2019 conseqguent to the
appointment of Mr. Narendra Ostawal & resignation of Ms. Laetitia Counye from the Board of Directors
of the Company.

During the financial year ended March 31, 2019, the committee met 3 times, i.e. on 24 May 2018, 14
November 2018 & 18 February 2019.

The composition & attendance during the financial year ended March 31, 2019 are as follows —

. Number of meetings
Name of the Director Category Held during tenure Attended

"Ms.. Ratna Vishwanathan Independent Director 2 2
(Chairman)

Mr. Nitin Gupta Independent Director 3 3
Mr. Kenneth Dan Vander Weele Neminee Director 3 3
*Mr. Narendra Ostawal Nominee Director 1 1
**Ms. Laetitia Counye Nominee Director 1 1

Adesignated as Choirman of the committee w.e.f. January 30, 20189,
*appainted as member of the committee w.e.f. January 30, 2G189.
**Ceased to be the member of Commitiee upon resignation from the Boord w.e.f. December 04, 2018,

Terms of Reference

The Company has in place the Nomination and Remuneration Committee in compliance with RBI
guidelines on Corporate Governance and it broadly includes the following:

« Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of
Directors and recommend to the Beard the remuneration of the Directors.

e To ensure ‘fit and proper’ status of proposed/ existing Directors.

¢ Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board;

» To review the structure, size and composition {including the skills, knowledge and experience} of the




Board at least annually and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

¢ To assess the independence of Independent Non-Executive Directors;

&« Toreview the results of the Board performance evaluation process that relate to the composition of
the Board;

» Annual appraisal of the performance of the CEQ

¢ To also act as the ESOP committee for the purposes, administer and manage the ESOP Schemes

Performance Evaluation by the Board:

The performance evaluation criteria for the board, its committees & the directors of the Company is
determined by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. An indicative list of factors on which
evaluation of Independent Directors is carried out includes participation by a director in the board
meetings, effective deployment of khowledge and experience in implementation of company’s
strategy, contribution with precise and value added inputs in Board Meetings to help decision making ,
integrity and maintenance of confidentiality and independence of judgement.

As part of the evaluation process, the performance evaluation of Board as a whole for the FY 2018-15 was
done by the Directors of the Board. The performance evaluation of the Promoter Director, Nominee
Directors and Non-independent directors was done by the every other Director. The performance
evaluation of the independent Directors was done by the Board excluding the Director being evaluated.
The performance evaluation of the board committees was done by respective committee members,

4. ASSET & LIABILITY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
Composition
The company has an effective Asset & Liability Management Committee formed in accordance with the
directions framed by RBI. The committee was last re-constituted by the board of Directors on January 30,
2019 to change the composition of its members on resignation of Mr. Javed Ahmad Siddiqui from the

hoard of the Company.

During the financial year ended March 31, 2019, the committee met 4 times, i.e. on 24 May 2018, 14
August 2018, 14 November 2018 & 18 February 2019.

The composition & attendance during the financial year ended March 31, 2019 are as follows —

Number of meetings
Name of the Director Category Held during tenure Attended
Mr. Devesh Sachdev (Chairman) Managl.ng Dl'rector, 4 4
Executive Director
Mr. Gaurav Maheshwari independent Director 4 4
**Mir. Javed Ahmad Siddigui Nominee Director 3 1

**Ceased to be the member of the Committee upon resignation from the Boord w.e.f. December 04, 2018.

Terms of Reference




The terms of reference of the Asset & Liability Committee include:

¢ Liquidity Risk Management

¢ Management of market {interest rate] risk

¢ Funding and capitaf planning

» Pricing, profit planning and growth projections

» To approve and revise the actual interest rates to he charged from customers for different products
from time to time applying the interest rate model and also in line with such regulations as may be in
force from time to time.

» Review of operational risk.

The Committee reviews the Asset Liability Management reports to be submitted periodically to RBI.

5. BOARD RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE {BRMC)
The company has an effective Board Risk Management Committee (BRMC) formed in accordance with the
directions framed by RBI for monitoring the risk and to strategize action to mitigate risks associated with
the functioning of the Company. The committee was last reconstituted by the Board of Directors on

January 30, 2019 to change the composition of its members on appointment of Mr. Narendra Ostawal &
resignation of Mr. Njord Andrewes from the board of the Company.

Composition

During the financial year ended March 31, 2019, the committee met 4 times, i.e. on 24 May 2018, 14
August 2018, 14 November 2018 & 18 February 2019.

The composition & attendance during the financial year ended March 31, 2019 are as follows —

Number of meetings
Name of the Director Category Held during tenure Attended

~ ;

Mr.. Pradip Kumar Saha Independent Director 4 4
({Chairman)
Mr. Devesh Sachdev Managl’ng Dl'rector, 4 4

: Executive Director

*Mpr. Narendra Ostawal Nominee Director 1 1
*Mr. Albert Hofsink Nominee Director 1 1
*Mr. Satish Mani VP - Risk & Audit 1 1
**Mr. Njord Andrewes Nominee Director 3 0

Adesignated as Chairmon of the committee w.e.f. tanuary 30, 2018.
*appointed as members of the committee w.e.f. January 30, 2019,
**Ceased to be the member of Committee upon resignation from the Board w.e.f. December 04, 2018.

Terms of Reference
The committee has with the following roles and responsibilities:

1. The BRMCis the authority that can approve, revise, or cancel policies related to risk management.
The policy which needs full Board approval is the General Risk Management Policy

o




2. Tasks of the BRMC include reviewing and approving policies and methodologies, and reviewing
risk reports.

3.  The BRMC defines the list of policies that are appropriate for Fusion. Such policies are modified
over time and additional policies are introduced to cover Fusion's operations as and when it
expand.

4. For each risk category the BRMC will establish a separate policy. The broad risk categoriesare

e Credit Risk, '

+ Operational Risk,

+ Liguidity, Funding and Interest Rate Risk and

¢ Other Market Risks that may arise in the future (including FX relatedrisks)

5. The BRMC requires reports for all sources of risks produced by various risk owners (department
heads). The BRMC should review the content as well as the structure of these reports,

6.  The BRMC will meet regularly, at least on a quarterly basis.

6. INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY STRATEGY COMMITTEE
During the financial year ended March 31, 2019, the committee met 1 time, i.e. on 14 November 2018,

The composition & attendance during the financial year ended March 31, 2019 are as follows —

Number of meetings
Name of the Director Category Held during tenure Attended
Mr. Nitin Gupta {Chairman) Independent Director 1 1
Mr. Devesh Sachdev Manag!ng Dl.rector, 1 1
Executive Director
Mr. Modaswer Hossain DVP - 1T & Operations 1 1

Terms of reference

The committee is constituted to carry out review and amend IT strategies in line with the corporate
strategies, board policy reviews, cyber security arrangements and other matters related to IT Governance.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The remuneration of Directors is fixed keeping in view the overall limit laid down as per the qualification
and experience of the appointee and gverall financial performance of the Company. The remuneration of
Executive Directors of the Company is being paid as approved by the Board of Directors of the Company.

a. Executive Directors

(i} Details of the remuneration paid to Executive Directors in the Financial Year 2018-19

Name Of Director Designation Amount

Mr. Devesh Sachdev MD & CEO iNR 11,649,609
TOTAL INR 11,649,609




b. Non-Executive Directors

The Independent Directors are not paid any remuneration other than the sitting fee for attending
meetings of the Board and the committees thereof as approved by the Board. The sitting fees as
determined by the Board for attending meetings of the Board, Audit Committee, Nomination and
Remuneration Committee, Board Risk Management Committee and CSR committee are within the limits
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013,

The details of Sitting Fees paid to Non - Executive Independent Directors for attending the meeting the
Board & relevant Committees during the Financial Year 2018-19 are as under:

¢Di Sitting Fees
Name of Director Designation
Board Meeting & Committee
Mr. Nitin Gupta Independent Director (NR 4,20,000
Mr. Pradip Kumar Saha Independent Director {NR 4,560,000
Ms. Ratna Vishwanathan | Independent Director iINR 3,80,000
Total INR 12,60,000

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING {AGM)

The details of the Annual General Meetings (AGM) of the shareholders held during the last 3 years are
given below:

H-1, C-Block, Community Centre,
Naraina Vihar, New Dethi- 110028

2017-18 26,06.2018 11:00 A.M.

H-1, C-Block, Community Centre,
Naratna Vibar, New Delhi - 110028

) C-3, Community Centre, Naraina }
2015-16 29.09.2016 04:0C0 P.M. Vihar, New Delhi-110028

2016-17 30.06.2017 11:00 A.M.

Extra Ordinary General Meetings
The details of Extra Ordinary General Meetings (EGM) of the shareholders held during the last 3 financial
years are given below:




DEE
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) H-1, C Block, Community Centre,
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11.05.016 | 05:00 P.M. ﬁ-ijCE;J:hr;‘-ulJ;(l]tgz%entre, Naraina Vihar, 3
2016-17 05.07.2016 | 05:00 P.M. ﬁ-j\fgghrﬂgggzcgentre, Naraina Vihar, .
12.08.2016 | 04:30 P.M. 583‘;“(:{;):;‘.:1112352%&:1&& Naraina Vihar, 3
oo [osoorm [REESER TSRS |

All the proposed resolutions were passed by the shareholders as set out in their respective notices.

'DEBENTURE HOLDER DETAILS

The details regarding the Dehenture Holders as on 31 March, 2019 are given as under:-

10th Floor-Phase 1, IT-Madras Rese;m:h Park,

IFMR Flmpact Investment Private Limited Kanagam Village, Taramani, Chennai 600113 100
" 2-8, Avenue Charles de Gaulle, L-1653,

AAV Sarl-Symboitic Il Luxembourg, 601
PETTELAAR EFFECTENBEWAARBEDRUF N.V. Nachtwachtlaan 20 — 6th Floor, 1058 EA, 526
(ASN Micracredit Fund TJ } Amsterdam The Netherlands

Blue Orchard {Microfinance Fund) 11-13, Boulevard, de 1a foire, L-1528, 470

Luxembourg

UT! Internaticnal Wealth Creator 4 4th Floor, 19 Bank Street, Cybercity, Ebene 550
(responsibility) 72201, Mauritius

Incofin CVBA Sneeuwbaslaan 20, 2610 Antwerpen, Belgium | 310




X . . Hinduja Leyland Finance, No.27 A Developed
Hindulja Leyland Finance Industrial Estate, Guindy, Chennai— 600032 200
AAV Sark-Symboitic Al 2-8 avenue Charles de Gaulle, L-1653 190

Luxembourg
" 20, Rue de la Poste, L-2346 Luxembourg,
AAV Sarl-Symboitic v Grand Duchy of Luxembourg 35

. N 11-13 boulevard de la foire, L-1528
Triodos Microfinance Fund Luxemburg, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg 315
Triodos Fair Share Fund Nieuwercordweg 1, 3704 EC, Zeist, the 315

Netherlands
. . 10th Floor, IT M Research Park, 1, Kanagam
IFMR Fimpact Long term Credit Fund Village, Taramani, Chennai, India-600 113 350
IFMR Fimpact Medium Term Opportunity 10th Floor, IT M Research Park, 1, Kanagam 150
Fund Village, Taramani, Chennai, India-600 113
. . 10" Floor, Phase 1, /IT Madras Research Park,
IFMR Fimpact Income Buiider Fund Kanagam Village, Taramani, Chennai — 600113 250
N 10" Floor, Phase 1, iIT Madras Research Park,
Northern Arc Capital Limited Kanagam Village, Taramani, Chennai — 600113 300
N 11-13, Boulevard, de a foire, L-1528,
Blue Orchard - Microfinance Fund 2 Luxembourg 340
?L‘:\Z?Chard - Microfinance Enhancement 5, Rue, Jean Monnet, L-2180, Luxembourg | 340
incofin CYSO CVBA-SO incofin CVSO CVBA-SQ, R‘avenstemstraat 1, 95
Gent, Belgium

REREMPTION OF NON CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES {NCDS) DURING THE FY 2018-19

During the financial year 2018-19 following Non-convertible Debentures were fully /partially redeemed:-

. Dateof | No.of | AMount Date of Detail of
S.No Particulars (in ,
allotment NCD oy redemption redemption
million)
Microfinane Enhancement |  April 30, .
1 Facility SA, SICAV-SIF 3015 24¢ 10,000,000 April 30, 2018 Fuily
Partial
Hinduja teyland Finance | September August 31, 2018, | redemption
2 Limited 04, 2017 200 110,00,000 February 28, 2019 of Rs.
6,66,66,800
June 30,
3 AAV SARL 2015 426 (10,00,000( August 13, 2018 Fully
Blue Orchard December
4 (Microfinance Initiative for 220  110,00,000 Dacember 16, 2018 Fully
Asia) 24, 2014




DEBENTURE TRUSTEES DETAILS

The Debenture Trustees are as follows:-

DEBENTURE TRUSTEE REGISTERED OFFICE ADDRESS
CATALYST TRUSTEESHIP LIMITED | Office No. 83-87, 8th flocr, ‘Mittal Tower’, 'B° Wing, Nariman
{(Formerly known as GDA) Point, Mumbai— 400021

Axis House, 2nd Floor, Wadia International Centre, Pandurang
Budhkar Marg, Worli, Mumbai-400 025.

IL. & FS Financial Centre, Plot No €22, G Block, Bandra Kurla
Complex, Bandra East, Mumbai, Maharashtra-40005%1

AXIS TRUSTEE SERVICES LIMITED

VISTRA ITCL (INDJA} LIMITED

OTHER DISCLOSURES

a. The Company has not entered in to any materially significant related party transaction that may
have potential conflict with the interests of the Company at large. A brief detail about the related
party transactions is attached in AOC-2 (Annexure 3).

b. There was no such non-compliance by the listed entity on any matter related to capital markets,
during the last three years.

¢. The Company has a Whistie Blower Policy duly approved by the Board, which has been circulated
to all the employees of the Company and aiso placed on the website of the Company i.e.
www.fusionmicrofinance.com. Further, it is affirmed that no personnel has been denied access to
the Audit Committee. The Company has an effective Vigil Mechanism system which is embedded
in its Code of Conduct. The Code of Conduct of your Company serves as z guide for daily business
interactions, reflecting your Company’s standard for appropriate behavior and living Corporate
Values. The Code of Conduct applies to all Fusion’s People, including Directors, Officers, and all
employees of the Company.

d. The related party policy of the Company is displayed at www.fusionmicrofinance.com

REGISTRAR AND SHARE TRANSFER AGENT DETAILS

In pursuance to Regulation 7{3) of the SEBI {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements} Regulations,
2015, all activities in relation to electronic facility with respect to Non-convertible debentures (NCDs) are
maintained by cur Registrar & Transfer Agent (RTA} i.e. Link Intime India Private limited having SEBI
Registration No. INROOD0O04058. Further, the Company has also availed electronic facility from the RTA
with respect to dematerialization of its equity shares,

in case of NCDs held in electronic form, the transfers are processed by National Securities Depository
Limited {NSDL} and Central Depository Services {india) Limited {CDSL) through their respective Depository
Participants. Details of RTA are as under:-

Link Intime India Private Limited

C-13, Pannalal Silk Mills Compound, LBS Marg,
Bhandup (West), Mumbai - 400 078.

Tel. No.: +91 22 2594 6970; Fax No.: +91 22 2594 6959
£-mail: rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in

Website: www linkintime.co.in




MATERIALLY SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

There have been no materially significant related party transactions, monetary transactions or
relationships between the Company and its directors, the management, subsidiaries or relatives. The
related party policy of the company is disclosed on the website of the company ie.
www . fusionmicrofinance.com.

DISCLOSURE AND TRANSPARENCY

At regular intervais, the Company placed the following information/reports to the Board of Directors:

Report on progress made in putting in place a progressive risk management system and risk Management
policy and strategy followed by the Company;

Statement of conformity with corporate governance standards viz,, in composition of various committees,
their role and functions, periodicity of the meetings and compliance with coverage and review functions,
etc.

The Annual Financial Statements, also include the following details:

» registration/ license/ authorization, by whatever name called, obtained from other financial
sector regulators;

ratings assigned by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings during theyear;

penalties, if any, levied by any regulator;

Asset-Liability profile, NPAs and movement of NPAs, details of all off-balance sheet exposures,
structured products issued by them as also securitization/ assignment transactions and aother
disclosures as required.

The particulars of transactions between the Company and its related parties, as defined under
Section 2(76} of the Companies Act, 2013 and in Accounting Standard 18, are set out in the
financial statements.

¥ The Company has a record of unqualified financiat statements since inception.

YY¥Y

A4

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

a. The half yearly results during the year were published in the national English Newspapers and also
on the website of the company i.e. www.fusionmicrofinance.com.

b. During the financial year 2018-19, the Company published its financial results in the following
newspapers:

Financiat Results MNewspapers Date of publication

Audited Financial Results for the year
ended March 31, 2019 The Financial Express {English) May 28, 2019

Audited Results for the Half Year

ended September 30, 2018 The Financial Express (English) November 15, 2018

REGULAR UPDATES
The Company sends Quarterly newsletter to the Board Members, stakeholders and keeps they
. prix

updated on




the happenings in the Company. All other events and happenings of importance to the sector are reported
to the Board on a continuous basis.

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Annual General Meeting: Date: june 29, 2019
Time: 11:00 A.M.
Vanue: H-1, C Block, Community Centre, Naraina Vihar, New Delhi-110028

Financial year: April 1, 2018 to March 31, 2019

Listing Fees: The Debentures of the Company are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange {BSE) and the listing
fees payable to the stock exchange for the financial year 2018-19 has been paid in full.

Dividend payment date: An interim dividend was paid on October 16, 2018, on the Optionally Convertible
Preference Shares held by Small Industries Development Bank of India.

DEMATERIALISATION OF SHARES AND LIGUIDITY

It has also been noted that the shareholding in dematerialized mode as on March 31, 2019 was 79.88%.
Shareholding pattern as on 31% March 2019 -

Promoters *5,010,150 27,206,828 7.62%
Investor 59,230,879 592,308,790 90.13%

Other Individuals 17,993 179,930 0.03%

ESOP Trust & Employees 1,461,566 14,615,660 2.22%
Total €,57,20,588 62,93,11,208 100.00%

*includes 3,099,408 partly paid up shares at which Re. 1 were paid tilf date

FSOP Trust &

Employees
Other Individuals 2.22% Promoters 7.62%

0.03%

investors
90.13%

% Prometers % Investors  # Employvees  # ESOP Trust




Address for Correspondence

Mr. Deepak Madaan

Company Secretary

Fusion Micro Finance Private Limited
H-1, C Block, Community Centre,
MNaraina Vihar, New Delhi-110028

Tel: +91 46646600

Website: www . fusionmicrofinance.com

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 27, 2019

MD & CEO



CEO Certificate
The Board of Directors
Fusion Microfinance Private Limited
This is to certify that:

1. We have reviewed Financial Statements and the Cash Flow Statement for the Financial Year ended
31 March 2019 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief:

a. these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material
fact or contain statements that might be misleading;

b. these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are
in compliance with existing Accounting Standards, applicable laws and regulations.

2. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company
during the year which are fraudulent or illegal or violate Company’s Code of Conduct.

3, We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for Financial Reporting
and we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining
to financial reporting.

4, We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee:

a. Significant changes in internal contral over financial reporting during the year;

b. Significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and

¢, Instances of significant fraud of which they have become aware and the involvement
therein, if any, of the Management or an employee having a significant role in the
Company's internal centrol system over financial reporting.

Placae: New belhi
Date: 27.05.2019

Devesh Sachdev
MD 8. CEO



Declaration regarding compliance by Board Members and Senior Management personnel with the
Company's Code of Conduct

This is to confirm that the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for the Members of its Board and its

Senior Management Personnel. | confirm that the Company has, in respect of the financial year ended 31%

March, 2019 received from the Members of the Board and Senior Management team of the Company, a

declaration of compliance with the Code of Conduct as applicable tothem.

Place: New Delhi

Date: 27.05.2019 “MD & CEO



FORM NG, AQC -2

Annexure 4

(Pursuant to clause (h} of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies

{Accounis) Rules, 2014,

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related
parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm'’s
length transaction under third proviso thereto during the FY 2018-19.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis during the FY2018-19.

SL. No. Particulars Details
a) Name (£] of the related party & nature of relationship 0
b) Nature of contracts /arrangements/transaction 0
¢} | Duration of the contracts/arrangenents/transaction 0
d Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or

] . L ) o 0

transaction including the value, if any

e) Justification for entering into such contracts or 0
arrangements or transactions’

£) Date of approval by the Board 0

g) | Amount paid as advances, if any 0
Date on which the special resolution was passed in

h) General meeting as required under first proviso to 0
section 188

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis during the FY2018-19.

SL. No, Particulars Details
a) Name (8) of the related party & nature of relationship 0
b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction 0
C) Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction 0
Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or

d) RO . . 0
transaction including the value, if any

e) Justification for entering into such contracts or
arrangements or transactions’

f) Date of approval by the Board 0

g) Amount paid as advances, if any 0
Date on which the special resolution was passed in

h) General meeting as required under first proviso to 0
section 188

{MD & CEO)

DIN: 02547111

bevesh Sa&udev

icro Fingnce Private Limited

Pradip Kumar Saha
{Director}
DIN: 02947368

Place: New Delhi
Dated: May 27, 2019



Annexure 5
Management Discussion and Analysis Report

ECONOMIC OVERVIEW

Fiscal 2018-19 belied expectations. For a period, which started out with the promise of robust
economic growth (GDP growth in Q1 was 8%) ended on a sub-optimal note as india’s GDP growth slid
to 7% in 2018-19 against 7.2% in 2017-18 and considerably lower than the 7.4% estimate set out by
Government agencies at the year-start.

This was primarily owing to the lackluster performance of the economy in the second half of the fiscal
(Oct’18-Mar’19) - GDP growth under 7%. This was mainly due to poor performance of farm, mining
and manufacturing sectors.

Economic performance was also hampered by the NBFC crisis which throttled liquidity in the system.
This hampered the progress of large ticket projects which are essential for economic progress.

And there is a larger concern. India could be heading towards an economic slowdown, The Ministry of
Finance in its Monthly Economic Report of March 2019 warned that India's economy appears to have
slowed down slightly in 2018-19. The proximate factors responsible for this slowdown include
declining growth of private consumption, tepid increase in fixed investment, and muted exports. But
this fear could be a thing of the past as the new and significantly empowered Government provides
optimism for a better year ahead.

Going forward: The International Monetary Fund {iIMF) cut india’s GDP growth forecast for 2019-20.
They project growth to pick up to 7.3% in 2019 {2019-20) and 7.5% in 2020, supported by the
continued recovery of investment and robust consumption amid a more expansionary stance of
monetary policy and some expected impetus from fiscal policy.

In addition, ADB and RBI have cut their 2019-20 growth projection for India to 7.2% from 7.4% earlier,
owing to growing risks to the global economic growth as well as weakening domestic investment
activity.

INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS

Microfinance as the name suggests focuses on working with the impoverished in urban and rural India
with the sole aim of uplifting the country. It was a good year for the microfinance industry despite the
volatility in the externat environment owing to the NBFC crisis and the upcomingelections.

Disbursements jumped by 63.26% over the previous year as the client portfolio increased. As a result,
the Gross Asset Under Management stood at INR 2641.39 crore as on March 31, 2019 against INR
1555.60 crore as on March 31, 2018. What was heartening is that the industry was back on track in
terms of operational efficiency as Portfolio at Risk {>30) declined frem 3.90% in 2017-18 to 1.78% in
2018-19, :

COMPANY OVERVIEW

Fusion Microfinance is a registered NBFC — MFI which operates in a Joint Liability Group lending model
of Grameen. Established in 2010, the Company focuses on reaching out to unbanked and providing
financial services to women entrepreneurs — 100% of its client comprise women living in rural and
semi-urban areas, The Company’s responsibilities extend beyond financial support to educating clients
on financial literacy.

Headquartered in New Delhi, the Company’s operations are spread across 18 Indian states
and managed by an experience and enthusiastic team of 4000+ members with an average age
of 27.5 yea :




OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

The Company registered a stellar performance in 2018-19. From an operational perspective, the
Company has taken important strides which promise to make its profitable growth sustainable.

The Company extended its footprint across 4 new states, thereby establishing its presence in 18 indian
states. Itincreased its branch network by 147 branches which has helped in strengthening its customer
base t¢ 1,510,823 as on March 31, 2019,

Further, the Company has focused on deploying digital solutions for its business processes for
improving accuracy and productivity. While cashless dishursements have increased significantly,
digital solutions are also being developed for strengthening internal processes.

The Company launched the mShakti, mobile app for its field force which has transformed field
operations, improving the customer on-boarding process, reducing the TAT to fund disbursement and
facifitate better cash collections.

The Company‘s focus on Lean Six Sigma and Project Management methodology has enabled it to
improve internal processes and optimize operational costs for the Company.

- FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Income

Revenue from Operation 48,626.27 25,446.47
Other income 2,538.323 1,284.80
Total Income 51,164.60 26,731.27
Expenditure

Employee Benefit Expense 10,119.17 6,610.08
Depreciation Expense .238.74 204.07
Finance Costs 24,420.78 13,660.24
Provision for Standard and Non- performing Assets {197.35) 2,195,239
QOther Expense 7,760,93 9,421.98
Total Expense . 42,342.27 32,091.75
Profit before Prior Period Expenses 8,822.33 {5,360.48)
Less: Prior Period Expenses (Net of Income) - -
Profit/(Loss) before tax 8,822.33 (5,360.48)
Current Tax/Deferred Tax - 2,287.12 (1,419.14)
Profit/(Loss) after tax 6,535.21 (3,941.34)

OUTLOOK FOR 2019-20 :

The current year holds significant promise for the sector and the Company.

From a sectoral perspective, the financia! services spaces seem to have moved beyond the NBFC crisis
with more stringent controls in place to ensure its smooth functioning. Mareover, the stability at-the
Central Centre indicates continuing of the existing policies and new announcements which hold
promise for improvement.




for clean and honest operations, thrust on accurate operations and seamless integration, and the
liquidity at the close of the fiscal provide considerakle optimism for a better and even more successful
performance in the current year.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND ITS ADEQUACY

At Fusion, the internal control procedures include internal financial controls, ensuring compliance with
various policies, practices and statutes considering the organization’s growth and complexity of
operations. The framework constantly maonitors and assesses all aspects of risks associated with
current activities and corporate profile, including scientific and development risks, partner interest
risks, commercial and financial risks.

Fusion has buiit the management reporting and internal control systems in place, that enable it to
monitor performance, strategy, operations, business environment, procedures, funding, risk and
internal control. The internal auditors carry out extensive audits throughout the year across all
locations penetrating all functional areas and submit their reports to the Audit Committee.

RISK AND CONCERNS
Risk management at Fusion is an integral part of the business model, focusing on making the business
model emerge stronger and ensuring that profitable business growth becomes sustainable.

The Company has adopted a comprehensive and integrated risk appraisal, mitigation and
management process. The risk management framework goes beyond traditional boundaries and seeks
to involve all key managers of the Company.

The Board of Directors stands at the apex of the governance, supporting the risk management
framework. The Board oversees the implementation of the Risk Management Plan principally through
the Board Risk Management Committee (BRMC).

The Board comprises of eminent directors with rich expertise and experience in the financial services
space and are well versed with the possible risks which could adversely impact the Company’s
performance

The Company has put in adequate checks by complying with the regulations framed by RBI which are
applicable to the Company. It also has an effective risk management department which is bound to
work in an effective manner in order to mitigate risks.

Whereas each department focuses on its specific area of activity, the risk management department
operates in cooperation with all other departments, utilizing all significant information scurced by the
other departments in order to manage risks.

The Company is regulated by Reserve Bank of india which has stipulated certain regulations to be
followed by each and every NBFC.

HUMAN RESOURCE

At Fusion, people power is the bedrock for its success. For the intellectual capital resident within the
organisation have formulated the contours of its differentiated business strategy and have played a
defining role in transforming business strategies into on-ground realities.

It also strives to retain its experienced team rich in domain expertise through people centric policies.

The Company’s knowledge building comprises of a detailed learning and development calendar
comprising multi-discipline training programs (technical knowledge and soft skills). This calendar
captures the development needs of employees through performance appraisals and business needs

based on sectoral trends\.The Company is alsomark ihbtowards creating web based modules to




extend its Learning and Development commitment across ail branches.

The company aisc has a strong culture of celebrations. All occasions are celebrated with great zeal
and excitement at the branches.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

This document contains statements about expected events and financial and oparational results of
Fusion Microfinance which are forward-looking. By their nature, forward-looking statements require
the Company to make assumptions and are subject fo inherent risks and uncertainties, There is a
significant chance that the assumptions, predictions and other forward-locking statements may not
prove to be accurate. Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on forward-looking
statements as a number of factors could cause assumptions, and actual results and events to differ
materially from those expressed here,

K“\\For and on behayf the Board of Directors
\ ¥ _

i

, ‘Pradip Kumar Saha
(MD & CEO)  \V'~. .7 (Director)

DIN: 02547111 ™. " DIN: 02947368
Place: New Delhi

Dated: May 27, 2019



Annexure &

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES TO BE INCLUDED IN THE BOARD'S REPORT

1. A brief outline of the company's CSR policy, including overview of projects or programs
proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or
programs.

Policy Statement
in alignment with the vision of the company, FMPL, as its CSR initiatives, will continue to enhance
" value creation in the society and in the community in which it operates, through its services,

conduct and initiatives, so as to promote sustained growth for the society and community in
fulfilment of its role as a Sacially Responsible Corporate with environmentalconcern.

Crganization Setup

The CSR projects in FMPL are implemented under the guidance of the Board's Sub-Committee on

CSR which presently comprises three directors out of which two are Independent directors. The

terms of reference of the Committee is given below:

a} Formuiate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy which shall
indicate the activities to be undertaken by the Company as specified in Schedule VIi to
Companies Act, 2013;

b) Recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities referred to in clause
{a} above; and '

¢} Monitor the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the Company from time to time.
Scope of activities
The CSR activities of FMPL are as per the provisions of Schedule VH of the Companies Act, 2013.

2. The Composition of the CSR Committee,

The CSR Committee comprised Three (3) Members including two (2) independent Directors. The
committee was reconstituted on January 30, 2019 with the following composition:

S.NO| NAME DESIGNATION -

1. Mr. Pradip Kumar Saha | Chairman

2. s, Ratha Dharashree Vishwanathan Member 7
3. Mr. Devesh Sachdev Member




3. Average net profit of the company for last three financialyears

(INR 8,83,39,768)

4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per cent of the amount as in itam 3above)

NIL

5. Details of CSR spent during the financial year,

a) Total amount to be spent for the financial year 2018-19: INR 75,00,000*

b} Amount Spent: INR 62,62,168

¢} Amount unspent, if any: INR 12,37,832

d} Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below.

{1} {2) (3) () (s) {6} (7) {8}
Amount | Amount spent
Projects or programs outlay(b | on the projects .
udget) Or programs Cumulative | Amount spent
X Sector in {1} Local area or other .
CSR project or . project sub-heads: expenditure Direct or

. which the {2} Specify the State .

S.No activity R . L, or (1) Direct upto the through
. Lo project is and district where ) . .
identified . program | expenditure on reporting implementing

covered projects or programs s rolects o period agen
was undertaken . proj gency
wise programs :
{inRs.}) ; {2) Overheads
Nationai Promote
1 | Nutrition Week | preventive | Ut@r Pradesh, Madhya | o) oo 171,575 171,575 Both
. Pradesh and Haryana
Celebration healthcare
Uttar Pradesh,
Chhattisgarh,
Promoting Uttarakhand, Madhya
3 ,
Health Camp preventive 'Pradesh‘, Jharkhand, 1,504,528 1,504,528 1,504,528 Agency
heatthcare Bihar, Qdisha, Haryana,
West Bengal and
Punjab
Uttar Pradesh,
Chhattisgarh,
3 Wheelchair Promoting Uttarakhand, Madhya B
Donation healthcare pradesh, sharkhand, | 215,084 215,084 215,084 rect
Bihar, Odisha,
Rajasthan
Promoting Jharkhand, Bihar .
4 DaanUtsav | . o sion Odisha | 152,132 152,132 152,132 Direct

o




Uttar Pradesh,

Chhattisgarh,
Financial Eradicating Rajasthan,
5 Literacy poverty Uttarakhand, Madhya |1,528,326 1,528,326 1,528,326 Direct
Program Pradesh, lharkhand,
Bihar, Odisha, Haryana,
Punjab
6 Preventive
Statfonary and health care
Sanitary Napkin Madhya Pradesh 68,675 68,675 68,675 Direct
s and
Distribution o
sanitation
Sanitation Madhya Pradesh, Uttar
7 Awareness Sanitation Pradesh, Odisha and 16,857 16,857 16,857 Direct
Program Jharkhand
Making
available
8 Rural safe Laksar, Uttarakhand | ¢4 1qq 53 190 53190 Agency
Development drinking : ' '
water
Respond
Relief and pro:w ptly Kerala
welfare waork for
9 to any {cherukadapuram, |, o0, 130,784 130,784 Both
Kerala flood natural kochukadavu,
victims catamity Nadathara and Cherpu)
Respond
Relief and P
welfare work for promptly
10 are work o to any Thanjaur, Tamil Nadu | 466,103 466,103 466,103 Agency
Gaja Cyclone ! ! !
et natural
viciims catamity
R
Relief and espond
ifare work for promptly to ih i
1l we | any natural Bihar 6000 8000 6000 Direct
Fire Victims ;
calamity
Ensuring
Environmental environment
12
Program al Laksar, Uttarakhand 43,400 43,400 43,400 Agency
sustainability
Jivika - Skilt Enhancing ' :
13 | Development | vocational fharkhand, Machya 1 o, \og 340,488 340,488 Agency
. Pradesh, Haryana
Program skills
Educational Frometing
14 Sponsorships education Hyderabad 105,000 105,000 105,000 Agency
Sponsorship (Go Prorriotin
15 Sports & Karnataka 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 Agency
. sports
Foundation) |
Sponsorship Promoting '
16 {indian Cancer Healthcare Delhi 281,000 281,000 281,000 Agency

Society)y.




¥

Toilet

construction Madhya Pradesh 179,026 179,026 179,026

Sanitation Qdisha, Uttar Pradesh,

Direct

*the company approved the CSR hudget of INR 75,00,000/-, however, INR 62,62,168 was spent during the FY 2018-
19. Further, the Board has taken a decision to carry over the unspent budgeted amount to the nextyear.

6.

In case the company has failed to spend the two per cent of the average net profit of the last
three financial years or any part thereof, the company shall provide the reasons for not
spending the amount in its Board report.

Not Applicable

A responsibility statement of the CSR Committee that the implementation and monitoring of
CSR Policy, is in compliance with CSR objectives and Policy of the company.

The implementation and monitoring of FMPL's CSR Policy is in compliance with CSR objectives and
Policy of the Company.

By rder of the Board of Directors
For Fusmn Mlcrof'nance Private Limited

|

Pradip Kumar Saha
Chairman of CSR Committee

Devesh §‘achdev
MD and CEQ

Place: New Delhi
Dated: May 27, 2019




(i)

Annexure 7

Details of Managerial Remuneration as per Companies Act, 2013 for the FY 2018-19

the ratio of the remuneration of each director to the
median remuneration of the employees of the company
for the financial year;

Managing Director & CEQO:
64:1

(ii)

the percentage increase in remuneration of each director,
Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer, Company
Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year;

Increase in Remuneration;
Chief Executive Officer; 24%
Chief Financial Officer: 17%
Company Secretary: 25%

the percentage increase in the median remuneration of

remuneration policy of the company.

.
(i) empioyees in the financial year; 12.88%
{iv) the number of permanent employees on the rolls of 4398
company as on March 2019;
average percentile increase already made in the salaries of
loyees oth i ; last . . .
e_mp o’ye t erthap the manager al pfersonnel tn the a!s The average increase in the salaries of employees
financial year and its comparison with the percentile ) .
) , ) . o was 12.88% and the average increase in the
(v) | increase in the managerial remuneration and justification . \
: . , managerial remuneration (CEOQ, CFO & CS) was
thereof and point gut if there are any exceptional 5399%
circumstances for increase in  the managerial '
remuneration;
. | Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the
(vi) Yes

The detall of top ten employees in terms of remuneration drawn is as follows:

Devesh | b ecutive MBA | 11,649,600 | ull time 014an-10 | 46 | 22 | BSALogisticss  No
Sachdev , employment
Officer
Tarun Chief Full time
: Operating MBA 7,705,337 19-lun-17 | 43 27 SBI Cards No
tehndiratta , employment
Officer
Chief .
!&ﬁf:;;a\:aﬁ Financial | CA MBF | 5,351,112 enﬁ”::‘::nt 03-Feb-16 | 40 | 15 Aéf::jha No
Officer pioy P
Ankush Vice Full time 03-Aug-15 40 15 Magma
Ahluwalia President MBE 3,865,503 employment Fincorp Lid. No
IIIII Jana Urban
Lekshnr?i Vllce MBA 3,069,839 Full §ime 22-Mar-18 41 15 _ Services fcn‘r No
3hargavi President employment Fransformatior




. . GE
atish Mani | _ “Ice scom | 3,262,183 | Fultme 1 oogApr1s | 47 | 25 | commercial|  No
President employment )
Finance
Arohan
Praveen Dy. _Vn:e MBA 2,105,320 Full time 12-Jan-15 44 15 Flnar'wcnal No
Kumar President employment Service Pvt.
Ltd,
Almondz
. Vi i - . ital
Deepak Dy ‘VICE cs, LLB 1,903,544 Fult time 01-June-13 39 10 Capital and No
Madaan President employment Management]
Services Ltd
Rf)hlt Asst.‘ Vice PG Mass 2,015,620 Full time 19-Sep-16 37 16 Metlife No
Dhiman President Comm. employment Insurance
‘ah'cl hasan* Asst: Vice MBA 812,453 Full time 21-Sep-18 ag 13 M?nnapuram No
alaiselvan President employment Finance Ltd.

* Remuneration poid is on pro-rata basis effective Date of Joining

Name of every employee of the company who «
a. if employed throughout the financiai year, was in receipt of remuneration for that year which, in
the aggregate, was not less than one crore and two lakh rupees; NiL

b. if employed for a part of the financial year, was in receipt of remuneration for any part of that year, at a rate
which, in the aggregate, was not Jess than eight lakh and fifty thousand rupees permonth; NiL

c. if employed throughout the financial year or part thereof, was in receipt of remuneration in that year which,
in the aggregate, or as the case may be, at a rate which, in the aggregate, is in excess of that drawn by the
managing director or whole-time director or manager and holds by himself or along with his spouse and
dependent children, not less than two percent of the equity shares of the company; NIL

By order of the Board of Directors
For Fusion Microfinance Private Limited

0 .
Pradip Kumar Saha

Director
DIN: 02947368

k\%
Devash Sachdev
MD and CEQ

DIN: 02547111

Place: New Delhi
Dated: May 27, 2019



